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LEPU ScienTech Medical Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.

BUREEME (L8) ROBRLA

Definitions

B=

In this report, the following expressions have the meanings set RAREFR  BRIEXEZBEME - TIHA

out below unless the context requires otherwise:

“Actual Controller”

[EERIZEHIA

“Anhui Magete’

[ 22 RIHRAF

“ASD”

[ = kiR |

“Audit Committee”

EEd

“Board”

[Exg]

“Board of Supervisors”

[EEEg]

“CG Code”

KEEEARTAD]

AR TXHMEEE

the individual or entity that can control a company by way of
investment relationship, contracts or other arrangements according
to the Listing Rules of the ChiNext Board of the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange (OFIIFEHFR ZAMBIZERBRE EMEA])) where Lepu
Medical, our controlling shareholder, is listed

BEZERBRRLEERR FTCORIBSFZFREIERKRE TR
) BBREWR BEIEELMTHERNEREARIITANEA
HER

Anhui Magete Medical Technology Co., Ltd." (2 & BREEER
AR AA), a limited liability company established in the PRC on
November 22, 2016 and an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of
Lepu Medical

ZRHEBREBEMEARLDGF - —KN2016F 11 A22 BN EK
VWBRAT  ARETEENREEIZENMB AR

atrial septal defect, a remnant opening, or a defect, between the left
and right atria resulting from the abnormal development, absorption
and fusion of the atrial septum during embryonic development
FRERRE  BREEREFT  FHBOHESE  REMRMALERR
B BHAL - A0EZHEREEARESEIE

the audit committee of the Board

EEgEIRES

the board of Directors of the Company

ZAUNCIE =5

the board of supervisor(s) of our Company

ARREEE

the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix C1 to the
Listing Rules
CETRBIDHIERCT PrE B /R<FRI)




“CHD”

[ 52 R MO s |

“Company” or “ScienTech
Medical” or “company”

[ARRA] [ DZEE]
INCIR

“controlling shareholder(s)
[ 12 e B3R

“Director(s)”

[E%]
“Dr. Pu”

[EEL ]

“FIM”
[FIM]

»
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B=

congenital heart disease, the formation of the heart and blood
vessels during embryonic development or abnormal development
or failure to close the channels that should be automatically closed
after birth, resulting in abnormalities in the solid structure or function
of the blood vessels in the heart or thoracic cavity

EREOHRE  ERREERHAENOERONENTEKERLEER
B AREBBBEMANRERERS SR OHEEOEANNE /7
RARIIRERT

LEPU ScienTech Medical Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.* (%
LOFEBEEMR( 8 RMHAERAF), a joint stock limited liability
company established in the PRC on January 29, 2021 and whose
Shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
DELFEERE (L) RHABARAF - —FHKN2021F1 A29 ARH
BIK MR ER AR - ERRGPE I AER LT

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

BB (EMRADE T &FANRE

the director(s) of our Company

ARAEF

Dr. Pu Zhongjie (& £E), one of the controlling shareholders of the
Company and the Actual Controller of Lepu Medical
SHBREE LT  ARFNERBRR 2 — RELTBENERIZESA

First in man

WK B RABER
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LEPU ScienTech Medical Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
EOREBREME (£8) ROBRARE

Definitions

B=

“Global Offering” has the meaning ascribed to it under the Prospectus

[2FREE] B  ABAERERMTZANRE

»oow » oo«

“Group”, “we”, “us”, or “our”

(&R ] M 3P

the Company and its subsidiaries from time to time
15 KRB RETEHHNER A

“HK dollar” or “HK$”

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

[%7T] EBETEEET

“Hong Kong” the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC

[&%] REEBFRITTRE

“KOLs” key opinion leaders, who are professionals that influence their peers’
medical practice, including but not limited to prescribing behavior

[EAREX] FREZR  RYURTHBRER (BRETNRREFTR) EETEN
HEAT

“LAA” left atrial appendage, a long, narrow and curved blind-end structure
extending forward and downward along the anterior wall of the left
atrium, which has active diastolic and secretory functions

[ E EOE R OERBIERA FEFEKRE - EMnEmnaE - A8
FHET MM D M INEE

“Lepu Medical” Lepu Medical Technology (Beijing) Co., Ltd.* (4% (dtR)E&
WM AR AT, a company listed on the ChiNext Board of
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, stock code: 300003, one of our
controlling shareholders

[BEE B | L (LR BESMROBRAR - —KRRINEHZZEIZER L

M A A (FHRHES - 300003) © BIERAR 2 —



“Lepu Medical Group’

(L BEEHE]
“Listing”

[ £

“Listing Date”
[EH R

“Listing Rules”
[ Al

“Main Board”
[EWR]

“Model Code”
[(IZAEFAI)
“NMPA”
[BIREEEL S
“PDA”
[BhAREE R
“PFO”

[ SR [EFLAREA
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Lepu Medical and its subsidiaries
LEBERNANBAR

the listing of Shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on
November 8, 2022
Bt 72022411 A8 BB P £ AR -

November 8, 2022, being the date on which the Shares of the
Company were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange

20224F11 A8H » BIARRA R M AB R AT ER =AY H

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
B FriE s LR Al

the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
Bt 2 PR E AR

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers contained in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules
BHANCETABDMSRCIMNC EMBETAESETESF X HNEAEST
1)

the National Medical Products Administration of the PRC (BIZ
BFEEEEIEE), formerly known as the China Food and Drug
Administration
PEEAREREEE CFIBERRREREEERER

patent ductus arteriosus, a remnant opening of the ductus
arteriosus, which fails to close normally in one year after birth

BIREERE > HAE—FRIDRELFEHAENBDIKEGENEE R

patent foramen ovale, a remnant opening of the fetal foramen ovale,
which fails to close normally in one year after birth
IPEIFLARR - HAE—FRINAREESRHAE R ZINEFLAEE AR
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“PRC” or “China”
[HE

“Prospectus”
[HBRER]

“Reporting Period”
[ ¥R HA

“RMB”
AR

“SFO”
[(FBHREEEGI)]
“Shareholder(s)”

IR

“Shares”

[Bfn |

the People’s Republic of China, excluding, for the purposes of this
report, Hong Kong, the Macau Special Administrative Region and
Taiwan
REARANE  giAREMS - TEEEE  RFIFITEREKRS
iR

the prospectus issued by the Company on October 27, 2022 in
connection with the Hong Kong public offering of the Shares
RARGRBEBLARBERMNHR2022F10 A27 A FI BB ER

six months from January 1, 2025 to June 30, 2025
B20254%1 A1 B#£E202596 308 (L7~ E A

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

FEMEEERARE

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of
Hong Kong), as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from
time to time

BEBEDIESTIECERREBEGRA) - &TRER] - s AH M
B

holder(s) of Share(s)
RPEFEE A

ordinary share(s) in the share capital of the Company with a par
value of RMB1.00 each
ARARBRAFFREEARE1.007TH E B




“Stock Exchange”
[ Bt 22 PR

“Substantial Shareholder(s)”
[EERF

»

“Supervisor(s)

(%

“Target Medical”

[ Kb A0 13 |

“TAVR”

[ 1885 T SR & 40T

“TMVCRS”

[TMVCRS |

“TMVR”

[TMVR]

“TMVr-F”

[TMVr-F
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The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
ERBMERGAARRAR]

has the meaning ascribed to it in the Listing Rules
BEA(EMRADE TR e8RS

the supervisor(s) of our Company
PN

Beijing Target Medical Technologies Co., Ltd.* (dt KA FHE
AR AT), a limited liability company established in the PRC on
November 18, 1999 and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Lepu Medical,
one of the controlling shareholders of the Company
IERRMABRRAR DT - —KN1999F 11 18 B FEF K L H)
BRAT  RARGERBRR s —REEENZENBE QT

transcatheter aortic valve replacement, a catheter-based technique
to implant a new aortic valve in a minimally invasive procedure
that does not involve open-chest surgery to correct severe aortic
stenosis

KEEFHMBERN - —EERGENRN - BB TP RFABFI
R RI F T AT B IRIE - AR ERREM E BRI RE

transapical mitral valve repair system (chordal), a catheter-based
system with two configurations, one enabling artificial mitral chordae
implantation and the other enabling edge-to-edge chordae repair
BOURZRMEERSG (BRR) " BEEREEBAGMERENSR
g —BRERATI-_SERREA 5 BERGHERREE

transcatheter mitral valve repair, which provides a newer, minimally
invasive option for treating the most common form of mitral valve
leakage for people who cannot undergo open-heart surgery. It
is implanted via a tri-axial transcatheter technique and involves
suturing together the anterior and posterior mitral valve leaflets
REBE _RMEEN  REEEIUHEERFHOARERERNC
KEZREET —EEH  MEEE - - BR=-HKSGERIMETE
A BIE#E ZRIRTEIRE

transfemoral mitral valve clip repair, a catheter-based technique
to repair the mitral valve in an interventional therapy that does not
involve open-chest surgery

I SRR BEN - —BEREEHRM - WENTAREREEC
R R RO
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“US$” or “USD” United States dollars, the lawful currency of the United States of
America

[T ] 15 EBUEEE®ET

“VSD” ventricular septal defect, a defect, or a hole, in the septum
between the left and right ventricles of the heart, which may lead to
abnormal blood circulation and pulmonary hypertension and other
complications in severe cases

[ = MkREriE i EHERRE - DEAAOENRENRBKILR - BREE AT EESM
RIEIRE T R BIIK = B LA K2 EL At OF B4 AE

“%" per cent

[%] i Epald

# For identification purposes only # EHE 5

* The Company is a registered non-Hong Kong company as defined * AR AFHREELZOIFEE22F (N A]IE

under the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) and it is registered under its Chinese name and
under the English name “LEPU ScienTech Medical Technology
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd.”.

BIDETEER B ER A - UEPXEE
R#BXEHLEPU ScienTech Medical
Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. |3 °



BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Director

Ms. Chen Juan (Chairman)
Non-Executive Directors

Ms. Zhang Yuxin

Mr. Fu Shan

Mr. Zhu Guanfu

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Ms. Chan Ka Lai Vanessa

Mr. Zheng Yufeng
Mr. Zheng Junwei

SUPERVISORS

Ms. Wang Xiaoyong
Mr. Qian Weidong

Mr. Wang Xinglin (appointment ceased on May 11, 2025)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Ms. Chan Ka Lai Vanessa (Chairperson)
Mr. Zhu Guanfu
Mr. Zheng Yufeng

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Zheng Yufeng (Chairperson)
Ms. Chen Juan

Mr. Fu Shan

Ms. Chan Ka Lai Vanessa

Mr. Zheng Junwei

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Ms. Chen Juan (Chairperson)
Mr. Zhu Guanfu

Ms. Chan Ka Lai Vanessa
Mr. Zheng Yufeng

Mr. Zheng Junwei
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JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. Qin Xue
Mr. Li Kin Wai

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES

Ms. Chen Juan
Mr. Li Kin Wai

LEGAL ADDRESS IN THE PRC

Room 201

Building 41

No. 258, Xinzhuan Road
Songjiang District
Shanghai

PRC

ADDRESS OF HEAD OFFICE IN THE PRC

1/F, 5/F

Building 41

No. 258, Xinzhuan Road
Songjiang District
Shanghai

PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG
KONG

Room 1918, 19/F, Lee Garden One
33 Hysan Avenue

Causeway Bay

Hong Kong

AUDITOR

BDO China Shu Lun Pan Certified Public Accountants LLP
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LEGAL ADVISORS

As to Hong Kong law

Wilson Sonsini Goodrich & Rosati

As to PRC law

Haiwen & Partners

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR
Tricor Investor Services Limited

17/F, Far East Finance Centre

16 Harcourt Road
Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKS

Bank of Shanghai

China Merchants Bank

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
Bank of Ningbo

COMPANY WEBSITE
http://www.scientechmed.com/
LISTING DATE

November 8, 2022

STOCK CODE

2291
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Financial Highlights
MBERE

- Revenue increased by 32.4% from RMB249.1 million for
the six months ended June 30, 2024 to RMB329.7 million
for the six months ended June 30, 2025.

- Gross profit increased by 25.4% from RMB226.7 million
for the six months ended June 30, 2024 to RMB284.3
million for the six months ended June 30, 2025.

- Research and development expenses increased by 17.0%
from RMB21.7 million for the six months ended June 30,
2024 to RMB25.4 million for the six months ended June
30, 2025.

- Net profit attributable to shareholders of the parent
company increased by 29.8% from RMB140.2 million for
the six months ended June 30, 2024 to RMB182.0 million
for the six months ended June 30, 2025.

- The Board does not recommend the payment of an interim
dividend for the six months ended June 30, 2025 (six
months ended June 30, 2024: nil).

Note:

Certain amounts and percentage figures included in this report have
been subject to rounding. Accordingly, figures shown as totals in certain
tables may not be an arithmetic aggregation of the figures preceding
them. Any discrepancies in any table or chart between the total shown
and the sum of the amounts listed are due to rounding.

— WAHBEZE2024%F6 A30H (LN E
BHARB2401 BB T K32.4%
BEZE202596 A30H LA AR
AR#320.7HETT °

—  ENHEZE2024%F6 A30H LA
A ARBE226.7 BB TER25.4%
EEZE202596 A30H IENE AR
AR#2843HETT °

— MEBRHEZE2024F6A30H
EREANAREN7TEETER
17.0% 2 & £ 202596 A30H 1E<
AAMARK2545ETT -

- REBEREAEREMZFFNBEAEZ
2024%F 6 A30BIENEAAMAR
¥B1402BELIER29.8%EHE
202596 AS0R L NE AN AR

182.0B& T °

- BEETEFZRNHZE20257F6
B30RIL/NEAMAHEE (2
2024456 A30H IE/NAA : ) o

i

ABEMBETHRELRADLBEFENE - A
bt - BT REAET WA R BT F
AN ERSEBEERA - FAXREHER
PR AR SR PR 1 BURR AR 2 R BV = R D 4B PR
B o
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

Over the years, the Group has been focusing on the research
and development, manufacture and commercialization of heart
disease interventional medical devices. We have over 20 years
of industry experience in the traditional metal medical devices,
and we have been successfully practicing degradability of
medical devices in recent years, and at the same time, the
Company is exploring the frontier fields of the heart valves,
cardiac mechanical circulatory support, atrial septal puncture
and other medical devices. As a leader in the interventional
medical devices industry in China, we will continue to provide
safe, effective, innovative and comprehensive medical solutions
in terms of breadth and depth.

As of the date of this report, we had a total of 30 marketed
occluders, heart valves and accessory products, four products
under registration review and preparation for registration and
28 product candidates in various stages of research and
development such as occluders, heart valves and procedural
accessories and mechanical circulatory support. The following
chart summarizes the development status of our product
portfolio up to the date of this report:

EEEWED

R¥EOB

ZENR > AEE-—BEE IR LRABE
MABBEIE - FEMEERL - RAE
BERTBBBRSEW I mEE 202 FH1T
EER OFRBMLEERNERE RS
WA REARE - ARARRIERRBREDL
PR - DR EREE - BERFR
FEBEBWMARAAE - (FRTEN AR
BaMiTEMEIEE  BRABHELREE
MREMERE @ RftL22 - S0 8#F
MEEABRARG R

BEAREAS  RAHFHERORE L
MEER - DRIER M EmR - 450GE
= R EETER - S H28FKER
T RIFT S B S S 2 DR IR & F 1l
ot - MWBERESB S EMER - NEH
AHRMERAEBEARS AR A LM
RAEE -

i
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENWEDN

Product

Pre-clinical Clinical Trial Registration ~ Commercialization

Atrial septal
defect (“ASD”)
occluder

MemoPart® ASD occluder (double-rivet)

Commercialized

MemoPart® ASD occluder (single-rivet)

Commercialized

MemoCarna® oxide coating
ASD occluder with single-rivet

Commercialized

Obtained the CE certificate

MemoSorb® biodegradable ASD
occluder

*

Commercialized

Ventricular
septal defect
(“VSD”)
occluder

MemoPart® VSD occluder (double-rivet)

Commercialized

MemoPart® VSD occluder (single-rivet)

Commercialized

MemoCarna® oxide coating
VSD occluder with single-rivet

Commercialized

Obtained the CE certificate

MemoSorb® fully-degradable
occluder systems

Commercialized

Preparation for initiating
of overseas clinical trials

Em

R PR BR B

7 TR B s PR e

MemoPart®/% [ fR B IE B 58 (HE50)

EY-E 3

MemoPart®f7 [H FRBR B G 28 (B8

[EL:E S

MemoCarna®

A LR 0 5 1 PR AR e

EIGE 3L

CEE®

MemoSorb®

YRR R K

[EL:E S

ESRIEITS RS

MemoPart®Z [H FR SR B G 28 (B8

EL-E S

MemoPart®Zs [H] fR BB B4 45 (HLE)

EY-E S

MemoCarna®

S I A 0 R AR T 0

BREt

CE%E %

MemoSorb®

R R A

[EL-E 34

SN R BB A
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Management Discussion and Analysis
@B AT

Product Pre-clinical Clinical Trial Registration ~~ Commercialization

MemoPart” PDA occluder (double-rivet) Commercialized
MemoPart® PDA occluder (single-rivet) Commercialized

Patent ductus . .
arteriosus Commercialized

(“PDA”) occluder MemoCarna® oxide coating PDA occluder
CE registration review in progress

MemoSorb® biodegradable PDA occluder o .
Clinical preparation stage

MemoPart® PFO occlude
(double-rivet/single-rivet)

MemoSorb® oxide coating PFO occluder * Preparation for registration materials
Patent foramen

ovale MemoSorb® biodegradable *
(“PFO”) occluder | PFO occluder

Commercialized

NeoSorb® bioabsorbable PFO occluder

Left atrial MemoLefort® LAA occluder system Commercialized
appendage
“« » Bio-Lefort® biodegradable LAA
(“LAA”) occluder o g * Mass clinical
Biodegradable aortic occluder *
Aortic embolization occluder *
Aortic and
peripheral Peripheral hydrogel spring coil Animal test
occluders
Biodegradable vascular plug * Design stage
Cross-linked reinforcement system Design stage
of abdominal aortic aneurysm
Commercialized
ScienCrown® transcatheter aortic *
valve replacement (“TAVR”) system )
CE animal tests
. ScienMelon® artificial heart valve with )
Aortic valve polymer leaflets for transcatheter implantation * Animal test
products
ScienChute® transcatheter aortic valve :
- Design stage
stenosis therapy system
ScienChute® pulsed acoustical generator Design stage
Transcatheter aortic valve system Al s
(regurgitation indication TAVR)
MemoChord® transapical mitral valve :
repair system (chordal) (“TMVCRS”) FIM
MemoClip-A® transapical mitral valve Toce ol
Mitral valve clip repair (“TMVr-A”) system * ke T
products

MemoClip-F® transfemoral mitral valve

clip repair (“TMVr-F”) system Clinical preparation stage

Transcatheter mitral valve replacement

(“TMVR”) system Animal test

=
=z
=
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEERE WD T
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Product

Pre-clinical

Atrial septal
puncture and
procedural
accessories

RF-Lance® radiofrequency puncture *
devices

Clinical Trial

EEEN WD T

Registration ~ Commercialization

Commercialized

RF-Lance® disposable radiofrequency *
atrial septal puncture needles

Disposable atrial septal puncture system

Commercialized

MemoPart® interventional delivery system

Commercialized

GuiBend® integrated interventional
delivery system

Commercialized

GuiFinder® occluder delivery system

Commercialized

GuiFlex® integrated interventional
delivery sheath

Commercialized

Gruiser® interventional delivery system

Commercialized

G-Cruiser® interventional delivery system

Commercialized

MemoPart® snare

Commercialized

Multiple-loop snare

Commercialized

SimoMelon® balloon dilatation *
catheter for aortic valve

Commercialized

Disposable introducing sheath

Commercialized

Thrombus protection device

Clinical preparation stage

StarCross® disposable delivery sheath

Preparation

materials

Vascular closure device system

7]

Transvalvular guide wires

registrat

Commercialized

Super stiff guidewire

ntary stage of NMPA registrat

Interventional guide wires

W
A |
s lI=
= 1=
s Is

=

2

E
]

stage of NMPA registration

Biodegradable LAA delivery system

ommercialized

Ultrasound contrast injection device

Design stage
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENWED N

Em Al i PR L B =M EEl
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GuiBend®— = EHE B A A M 14 26 [EISE 34
GuiFinder® s 25 W% 2 4 [EESE 34
GuiFlex®—H# 3 Jr A B [EESE 34
Gruiser®BH4 881 ABI% R4 [ErSE 34

RGESIN

FHMRLAER | G-Cruiser B4 30 ABIE R4 [EISE 34
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LR [EYHE 2|4
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The business segments of the Company maintained a
sound development trend overall, achieving stable growth
in its revenue. For the six months ended June 30, 2025, the
Company achieved revenue of RMB329.7 million, representing
a period-on-period increase of 32.4% from the six months
ended June 30, 2024; net profit attributable to shareholders
of the parent company of RMB182.0 million for the six months
ended June 30, 2025, representing a period-on-period increase
of 29.8% from the six months ended June 30, 2024; net
cash flows generated from operating activities of RMB166.8
million for the six months ended June 30, 2025, representing a
period-on-period increase of 61.2% from the six months ended
June 30, 2024. As of June 30, 2025, the total assets of the
Group were RMB2,279.1 million, representing an increase of
9.4% from the beginning of the Reporting Period, and the net
assets were RMB1,973.2 million, representing a decrease of
1.2% from the beginning of the Reporting Period.

CHD Occluder Products

As at the date of this report, the Group owned 11 commercially
available CHD occluder products, among which, MemoCarna®
[l oxide coating single-rivet occluder series products have fast
become the backbone of the CHD occluder products business
after its approval for marketing in 2020. Upon the MemoSorb®
IV fully-degradable occluder systems obtaining its approval
for marketing in 2022, it was pleasing to see that MemoSorb®
IV biodegradable ASD occlude products obtained the NMPA
medical device registration certificate in August 2024. These
two kinds of products have been rapidly commercialized,
providing more options for clinical surgery for CHD and
becoming the Group’s flagship products in the CHD field.
Leveraging on the long-term technology accumulation, we have
maintained our leading position in the field of CHD interventional
therapy through technology upgrading, products iteration and
original technology. Medical devices for CHD are the stabilizers
for the Group’s business, the Group is entering a new phase
of rapid growth in its various businesses through extended
development while maintaining its traditional strengths.

In line with our technological philosophy of “No Implantation
for Intervention”, the Group will continue to promote the
research and development and promotion of biodegradable
material, realizing the clinical application of degradable-related
technology in more medical device products.
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PFO and LAA Occluder Products

Our first generation cardioembolic stroke prevention products,
being LAA occluder and PFO occluder products, were
successfully commercialized in 2020 and 2012, respectively.

Our second generation cardioembolic stroke prevention
product candidate, being oxide coating PFO occluder, has
completed clinical follow-up visits and entered the registration
application stage, and is expected to submit NMPA registration
application in the third quarter of 2025. The third generation
MemoSorb® biodegradable PFO occluder product was
approved for marketing in September 2023. The PFO surgeries
have a better market foundation and have shown a sign of
rapid growth in recent years. Coupled with the Company’s
innovative biodegradable technology, the products have gained
widespread attention and high popularity in the market upon
their launch, and have achieved excellent sales results after
marketing and clinical application for nearly two years. As of
June 30, 2025, cumulative sales of the product have exceeded
RMB200 million since its launch, thus becoming another
blockbuster product of the Group in the implementation of
the philosophy of “Implantation without Residue”. It was also
a typical example of the Company’s innovative products with
significant commercialization results. The Company’s another
important application of the biodegradation technology in
cardioembolic stroke area, Bio-Lefort® biodegradable LAA
occluder product candidate has successfully completed its
pre-clinical type inspection and animal test stages as planned
and officially entered the stage of multi-center clinical trial
enrollment.
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Aortic and Peripheral Occluders

The Company has established a presence in the aortic and
peripheral fields, with products including biodegradable
aortic occluder, aortic embolization occluder and degradable
peripheral occlusion-related products. The occluder used
for aortic dissection rupture is an innovative application
of biodegradable technology to treat distal rupture of the
aortic dissection. Through minimally invasive interventional
surgery, the aortic dissection rupture can be precisely sealed,
preventing the expansion or rupture of the dissection and
at the same time preserving the blood flow of the important
blood vessels and improving the blood supply of the remote
organs; it also reduces the post-surgical complications and
minimizes the risk of the surgery. The aortic embolization
occluder is specifically designed to deal with endoleak after
endoluminal repair of abdominal aortic aneurysms. It adopts a
self-expanding structure with dense mesh weaving (% #4844 B
e/ 45%), which can maintain full expansion in the meandering
and complex space, efficiently fill the aortic aneurysm, promote
thrombosis, effectively reduce the size of the tumor capsule
and avoid the risk of rupture. At present, both products have
completed type inspection and animal tests, and progressed
into the clinical trial stage. Currently, there are no commercially
available targeted treatment devices for aortic dissection
rupture and postoperative Il endoleak after aortic aneurysm
repair in the market, and both of the Group’s products are
global innovations. The biodegradable aortic occluder combines
cardiac occluder technology and biodegradable technology,
and it is expected to overcome the international challenge of
distal rupture of the aortic dissection treatment with accurate
occlusion, material innovation and high clinical efficiency as
its core competitiveness. The aortic embolization occluder is
designed for large abdominal aortic aneurysms, which has
the advantages of high pressure-to-compression ratio, high
filling efficiency, excellent sheath performance, and simple
operation. The two products will provide patients with safer
and more effective treatment options, and will have excellent
commercialization opportunities and market prospects in the
future.
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Heart Valve Product Candidates

The Company’s products in heart valve field mainly covered
aortic valve and mitral valve products. Our ScienCrown® was
officially commercialized in early 2025. With its excellent clinical
performance and robust evidence-based data, the ScienCrown®
fully recyclable self-expanding short valve fully demonstrates the
innovative transformation capabilities and clinical advantages
of “Intelligently Made in China” in the field of structural heart
disease intervention therapy. As the world’s first self-expanding
short valve combining the advantages of balloon dilation valves,
ScienCrown® valve is featured with smooth pre-bending over the
arch, release coaxial, stable expansion, good support and 100%
recovery under working condition of artificial valve, etc., which
could address the pain points of clinical demand in an optimal
manner and greatly shorten the surgeon’s learning curve, thus
bringing a new standard of care to patients and providing a
better clinical experience in valve performance and prognosis.
In combination with the short valve frame and pre-bent delivery
system (FEZ#j:XZ4£T), it demonstrates excellent adaptability
in complex lesions such as severe calcification and biological
valve deterioration. Through differentiated competition methods,
the Company expects that it will bring safer and better products
to clinical-end and generate greater revenue to the Company.
To date, the products have been introduced into more than
70 clinical centers in China and their implantations have been
conducted. In addition, we are developing a transcatheter aortic
valve system for patients with simple aortic regurgitation. The
product adds a clamped positioning design to the valve based
on the prototype of ScienCrown® TAVR system which is suitable
for dual indications of valvular insufficiency and stenosis, and
adds a bending function based on the pre-bending feature of
the original delivery system to improve operational performance
of clamped positioning design. The product has completed
animal tests and type inspection currently and it is planned
to carry out clinical trials by the end of 2025. Our transapical
mitral valve clip system is currently undergoing phase Il clinical
trials, and we expect to postpone submission of its registration
application to the NMPA until 2026. We conducted independent
innovation and optimization in the product design and also
drew on the extensive experience from clinicians in respect of
transcatheter mitral valve clip system, enabling the design and
performance of the product much more acclimated to Chinese
patients and the usage habits of Chinese physicians. It is
currently in the pre-clinical preparation stage and is about to
initiate the clinical trials. Our self-developed TMVR system has
completed the implantation in the animal and the follow-up of
six months after surgery, accumulating relevant technology and
experience.
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As an important part of structural heart disease, the field of
heart valve therapy is booming in China, and after years of
market cultivation, the domestic market has gradually matured
and begun to enter the harvest period. With the technological
precipitation of aortic valve products that have entered the early
stage of commercialization and the accumulation of market
resources for related products, the Company will also continue
to make efforts in this field and launch more and better product
solutions as early as possible.

Mechanical Circulatory Support Products

The Company has expanded into the field of mechanical
circulatory support (“MCS”) devices, which are designed to
provide temporary or long-term support to patients requiring
cardiac assisted power. The portfolio of our MCS device
product line covers both short- and long-term products, which
are designed to assist or replace the pumping function of
the ventricles. The portfolio of our MCS device product line
includes transcatheter ventricular support system, high-risk
percutaneous coronary interventions (‘PCI”) ventricular support
system, expandable trochanteric ventricular support system and
wholeheart support system. In particular, the transcatheter left
ventricular support system suitable for left ventricular support
is in the pre-clinical type inspection stage, and mass animal
tests have been carried out. Supporting peelable sheaths and
other interventional accessories with self-developed materials
have been designed and entered type inspection stage and
bioassay stage. Small diameter transcatheter left ventricular
support system and high-risk PCI coronary protection left
ventricular support system for patients requiring low-flow
support or high-risk PCl patients will progress into the stage
of type inspection in the near future. The Company is an early
pioneer in the field of MCS in the PRC, which is still emerging
in the PRC with a bright market prospect. With the Company’s
profound research and development capability and technology
accumulation in active medical device field, the Company will
provide patients in the field with the most optimal medical
solutions and is confident that it will become one of the most
core and valuable participants in the field.
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Pathway Products

Pathway products mainly include CHD occluder products and
procedural accessories for heart valve and also include atrial
septal radiofrequency puncture products and others.

RF-Lance® radiofrequency puncture devices and RF-Lance®
disposable radiofrequency atrial septal puncture needles have
been approved for marketing in the PRC in April and July 2024,
respectively. The approvals of these two products further enrich
the Group’s product lines, and the Company has become
one of the high-quality suppliers with the most comprehensive
product lines in the field of structural heart disease in China.

Occluder related accessory products are important component
parts of occlusion surgery. As at the date of this report,
the Group has owned ten commercially available occluder
related procedural accessories, and in line with the increasing
commercialization level of occluder products, the accessory
products have also achieved considerable revenue. Our
biodegradable LAA occluder delivery system has obtained a
registration certificate and has been launched for sale in 2025.

The Company owned seven types of valves related procedural
accessories, including, among others, balloon dilatation catheter
for aortic valve, super stiff guidewire, thrombus protection
device and vascular closure device system. In particular,
the balloon dilatation catheter for aortic valve has received
registration approval from the NMPA at the end of 2024; the
super stiff guidewire has been submitted for registration in
the fourth quarter of 2024 and is expected to be approved for
marketing in the fourth quarter of 2025; vascular closure device
system has entered the clinical trial stage, of which the clinical
progress has been finished more than a half. The product has
an innovative design structure, which can reduce vascular
complications and provide physicians with excellent ease-to-use
experience. The product is expected to be submitted for
registration in the first quarter of 2026.
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OUTLOOK

Looking forward, we will continue to be committed to providing
safe, effective, innovative and comprehensive medical solutions
for patients in pan heart disease-related medical device fields.

We will continue to explore and develop new technologies
and focus on the core technologies and product development
targeting structural heart diseases to enrich our product
portfolio to cover a full range of treatment options for various
fields of structural heart disease. Furthermore, we will continue
to promote technology in a number of aspects, including design
and concept innovation, material innovation, structural design
innovation, production process optimization, to further enhance
the innovation, functionality and reliability of our products.
Meanwhile, we firmly believe that biodegradable technology
is one of the important technology applications for medical
device products in the future, and will greatly stimulate the
structural changes in the domestic medical market and drive
the overall transformation and upgrade of the medical device
industry as widely applied to our occluder product and other
product candidates, which positions us well to capitalize on
the significant market opportunities, to further explore existing
market and expand into incremental market.

In the CHD interventional devices field, we will leverage our
significant market advantages established with more than 20
years of in-depth development to continue to increase the
speed of iteration of our innovative products and drive rapid
business growth. Meanwhile, we will continue to promote
innovative products into overseas markets and have obtained
CE certification for the occluders of the third generation oxide
coating series, which will further drive international market
growth.
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In the cardioembolic stroke prevention field, we will explore the
research and development of new PFO occlude products and
LAA occlude products, while we will continue to promote the
commercialization of our marketed products. In particular, the
biodegradable PFO product achieved excellent sales results
during the Reporting Period. The Company will further enhance
interaction and communication with surgeons, strengthen
quality control of products and marketing promotion, and
endeavor to broaden its sales channels, with a view to further
opening up the market for the product over the next few years,
so as to enable more patients to enjoy the quality experience
and convenience brought by innovative medical device products
through surgical treatments and regain healthy living. We
believe, upon application of the biodegradable technology
to such field, we are well positioned to capitalize on and
share the significant potential in the domestic fast-growing
and low-penetration market and enable more doctors and
patients to enjoy our innovative products and quality services
by leveraging our early-mover advantages, excellent product
features, and well-established sales channels, which will put us
in a leading market competitive position in such field.

In the valve stenosis and reflux therapy field, we will rely on
our existing technology platform for valve products, further
consolidate and strengthen our technological advantages,
continue to promote concept of “Tool Box”, and focus on the
development of valve products with great medical demand and
promising market while covering the full product line of valves.
Among them, we will accelerate the progress of research and
development of the TMVr-F system and the TMVR system for
the treatment of mitral valve regurgitation disease, in order
to achieve full coverage of mitral valve disease treatment and
address the increasing clinical demands from patients and
physicians. We will accelerate the advancement of iterative new
products based on ScienCrown® TAVR system for Conformité
Européenne (“CE”) Certificate registration clinical trials, the
special dry valve of such iterative products, upon processing by
adopting the self-developed technology, has the advantages of
stronger anti-calcification ability, better hemodynamic effect and
longer service life. We are also developing a transcatheter aortic
valve system for patients with simple aortic regurgitation, which
will complement the ScienCrown® TAVR system to provide
optimal treatment options for patients with different types of
aortic valve disease.
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Cardiac mechanical circulatory support is a life support
technology, and has become an important “bridge” treatment
for patients with acute cardiac event and end-stage heart
failure after decades of development, which also has more
extensive clinical application. It is estimated that approximately
13.7 million patients in China and more than 64 million patients
globally suffered from cardiac underpower, and about 50% of
them will die within five years after diagnosis. The global market
scale of MCS devices is expected to grow at a compound
annual growth rate of 10% or above from 2021 to 2028, with a
market value expected to reach approximately USD3.4 billion in
2025. The Company, as a cardiovascular interventional medical
devices company with strong spirit of technological innovation,
has been dedicated to expanding into the blue ocean market of
MCS and protective PCI. The Company is developing a series of
product candidates, which may help patients, after marketing,
significantly improve their quality of life and survival rate.
Meanwhile, as a multidisciplinary composite technology, such
products will fully demonstrate our technological accumulation,
ensure that the Company continues to seize the technological
highland in medical devices field, and ensure the progressive
development of the Company’s future product lines and the
sustainable development of the Company’s business.

In the structural cardiology pathway products field, we are
developing and producing a number of products, and one
pathway product has obtained certificates during the Reporting
Period. In particular, the Company is one of the early developers
of our vascular closure device candidates, and there is no
vascular closure device approved for marketing in the PRC. It
is estimated that the market size of vascular closure devices in
the PRC will have a greater growth, in particular, aortic valve
intervention technology has the most mature market and the
largest number of patients are those with mitral regurgitation.
The market for mitral valve and tricuspid valve interventions will
gradually expand, and the demand for large-caliber vascular
closure devices will also increase in line with the development
of technology. The Company will accelerate the research and
development of vascular occluder device products to meet and
lead the market demand.
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We will strengthen our marketing team building, explore
potential marketing channels, continue to expand our sales
network in China and continue to build our good reputation and
word-of-mouth among doctors and patients. We will continue
to strive to promote product brand awareness and influence
in the industry and academia, and solidify and strengthen
our communication, exchange and interaction with research
institutions, hospitals, doctors and KOLs to obtain valuable
feedback from them. We will also collect and dive deep into
more market data and information, continuously improve and
optimize the product design and production process and
enhance the service capability of the sales terminal, so as to
better serve the doctors and patients with better products and
more considerate sales service capability, and strive to become
one of the important leaders in marketing and sales service in
the PRC.

In terms of overseas business, we will actively expand our
overseas sales channels with global insight. With a rigorous,
pragmatic and sincere attitude and way of working, we will
endeavor to explore the market potential of the existing
products and increase the market penetration rate of the
existing products, and build up a good reputation of our
products and corporate image in the international market, to
enhance recognition of Chinese brands and made in China in
the global market. We will keep abreast with the development
trend, clinical demand and market competition layout in global
markets in a timely manner, and formulate a plan for overseas
clinical trial and registration in a reasonable manner, to advance
the commercialization process of innovative products such as
biodegradable occluder series and valve series in overseas
markets in due course, which is conducive to a better and
sustainable development of the Company’s overseas business
so as to ensure the smooth implementation of the Company’s
internationalization strategy and achieving outstanding
commercialization results.
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Revenue
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Our revenue is mainly derived from the sales of medical devices
through distributors and direct sales.

BMIEEWAREZE2024F6 A30H 1E
NEAMARK2491HEITIEING2.4%
EHZE2025F6A30HIEAEAMAR
¥6329.7H BT o TRHEIIHE2024F K
202596 A30 R L ANEARMPHIZEZER
5B UARRAE -

Our revenue increased by 32.4% from RMB249.1 million for
the six months ended June 30, 2024 to RMB329.7 million for
the six months ended June 30, 2025. The following table sets
forth a breakdown of our revenue by major products for the six
months ended June 30, 2024 and 2025.

Six months ended June 30,

BEGA30ALAER

2025 2024 Change
2025 20244 -1l

RMB RMB
N o % N % %
CHD occluder products EREOEREESRER 160,628,028.37 48.7 128,570,233.84 51.6 249
PFO and LAA occluder products ~ SIEARFARLZUDEIARER  81,656,574.20 24.8 79,763,191.28 320 2.4
Pathway products BREERD 47,192,209.59 14.3 40,346,197.08 16.2 17.0

Heart valve products DEREER 40,125,415.38 12.2

Other products EhER 103,111.24 0.0 420,526.45 0.2 755
Total AF 329,705,338.78 1000  249,100,148.65 100.0 32.4
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CHD occluder products

Revenue generated from sales of CHD occluder products
was an important component of the Group’s revenue, which
increased by 24.9% from RMB128.6 million for the six months
ended June 30, 2024 to RMB160.6 million for the six months
ended June 30, 2025, representing 51.6% and 48.7% of our
revenue in the corresponding periods, respectively. Revenue
generated from sales of CHD occluder products was able to
achieve rapid growth, which was primarily due to the facts that
revenue generated from our traditional metal occluder products
grew steadily, and MemoSorb® IV biodegradable VSD and
ASD occlude products have obtained certificates successfully
and commercialized rapidly, resulting in substantial increase
in revenue; at the same time, we are also achieving product
iteration and differentiated competitive landscape through
biodegradable technology.

PFO and LAA occluder products

Revenue generated from sales of PFO and LAA occluder
products increased by 2.4% from RMB79.8 million for the six
months ended June 30, 2024 to RMB81.7 million for the six
months ended June 30, 2025, representing 32.0% and 24.8%
of our revenue in the corresponding periods, respectively. The
revenue from the product line was mainly derived from the sales
of third generation MemoSorb® biodegradable PFO occluder
products. Due to innovative incorporation of biodegradable
technology, the products have gained widespread attention
in the market since their launch in the second half of 2023,
and won high popularity and recognition from both clinical
applications and patients, which has brought about excellent
commercialization results, and the proportion of the product line
in total revenue has been increasing gradually.
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Pathway products

Revenue generated from sales of our pathway products
increased by 17.0% from RMB40.3 million for the six months
ended June 30, 2024 to RMB47.2 million for the six months
ended June 30, 2025, representing 16.2% and 14.3% of our
revenue in the corresponding periods, respectively. Our pathway
products primarily include interventional delivery systems and
snares mainly related to CHD occluder products. Revenue
generated from sales of interventional delivery system was the
largest source of our revenue generated from sales of pathway
products. The increase was primarily attributable to an increase
in the sales volume of our various occluder products, and the
sales volume of our related procedural accessories increased
accordingly.

Heart valve products

Our ScienCrown® TAVR system and SimoMelon® balloon
dilatation catheter for aortic valve received registration approval
from the NMPA at the end of 2024 and have officially begun
commercialization in early 2025. With the unique structural
design, superior product quality and comprehensive sales
channels, our heart valve products achieved a significant
commercialization result. The products achieved sales revenue
of RMB40.1 million for the six months ended June 30, 2025,
representing 12.2% of our revenue in the corresponding
period. We also believe that as the commercialization process
progresses, this proportion will increase rapidly.

Other products

For the six months ended June 30, 2024 and 2025, revenue
generated from the sales of other products decreased by 75.5%
from RMBO0.4 million for the six months ended June 30, 2024
to RMBO.1 million for the six months ended June 30, 2025. The
sales of other products primarily included vascular plug and
products with relatively low applicability or importance.

Operating cost

Our operating cost increased by 102.2% from RMB22.4 million
for the six months ended June 30, 2024 to RMB45.4 million
for the six months ended June 30, 2025. Our operating cost
primarily consisted of (i) raw materials and consumables;
(i) labor costs; (iii) amortization of intangible assets; (iv)
depreciation of property, plant and equipment; (v) transportation
costs; (vi) utilities and office expenses; and (vii) others.
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The following table sets forth our cost of sales by nature in
absolute amounts and as percentages of our total cost of sales
for the six months ended June 30, 2024 and 2025.

EEEN WD T
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Six months ended June 30,

HE6A30AILKEAR
2025 2024 Change
20255 20244 21
RMB RMB
AR%T % ARET % %
Raw materials and R B R M
consumables 22,644,621.05 49.9  10,133,011.07 452 123.5
Labor costs AIER 8,003,887.50 17.6 5,842,466.37 26.0 37.0
Amortization of intangible EREESH
assets 11,998,822.85 26.5 4,222,953.26 18.8 184.1
Depreciation of property, 0¥ BEREENE
plant and equipment 851,437.70 1.9 827,572.39 3.7 2.9
Transportation costs I 550,245.83 1.3 743,573.54 33 -26.0
Utilities and office expenses UNZES I8 YNGR 516,334.57 1.1 408,813.02 1.8 26.3
Others Hith 792,791.85 1.7 251,885.17 1.1 214.7
Total At 45,358,141.35 100.0  22,430,274.82 100.0 102.2

Our raw materials and consumables costs primarily represented
nitinol products, sheathes and other metal and plastic
components used during the manufacturing process, which
increased by 123.5% from RMB10.1 million for the six months
ended June 30, 2024 to RMB22.6 million for the six months
ended June 30, 2025, which was primarily attributable to the
gradual expansion of the Group’s product lines, including the
commercialization of heart valve products in early 2025 and
their outstanding performance, which resulted in an increase
in related costs; the increase in costs of materials for other
products due to the increase in output and sales volume.

Our labor costs increased by 37.0% from RMB5.8 million for the
six months ended June 30, 2024 to RMB8.0 million for the six
months ended June 30, 2025, which was primarily attributable
to the increase in output and sales volume of various products,
resulting in an increase in labor costs.

Our amortization of intangible assets increased by 184.1%
from RMB4.2 million for the six months ended June 30, 2024
to RMB12.0 million for the six months ended June 30, 2025,
which was primarily attributable to the transfer of capitalized
R&D expenditure of a number of new products developed by
us to intangible assets and the commencement of amortization
after the products obtained the NMPA approvals and entered
the commercialization stage, resulting in a significant increase
in our amortization of intangible assets as compared to the
corresponding period last year.
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For the six months ended June 30, 2024 and 2025, our
depreciation of property, plant and equipment remained
basically stable at RMB0.83 million and RMBO0.85 million,
respectively.

Our transportation costs decreased by 26.0% from RMBO.7
million for the six months ended June 30, 2024 to RMBO0.6
million for the six months ended June 30, 2025, which was
primarily attributable to the change of the logistics service
provider with a lower quote by us at the beginning of 2025,
resulting in a decrease in our transportation costs.

Our utilities and office expenses increased by 26.3% from
RMBO0.4 million for the six months ended June 30, 2024 to
RMBO0.5 million for the six months ended June 30, 2025, which
was primarily attributable to the expansion of the Group’s
production scale, resulting in the increase in related expenses
such as utilities and heating, and property rents and property
management fees.

Our other costs increased by 214.7% from RMBO0.3 million
for the six months ended June 30, 2024 to RMBO0.8 million
for the six months ended June 30, 2025, which was primarily
attributable to the expansion of the Group’s production
scale, resulting in the increase in expenses directly related to
production, such as processing fees, testing fees for production
environment and fees for sterilization.

Gross profit

Our gross profit increased by 25.4% from RMB226.7 million for
the six months ended June 30, 2024 to RMB284.3 million for
the six months ended June 30, 2025. The increase in our gross
profit was in line with the growth in our overall revenue.

Taxes and surcharges

Our taxes and surcharges primarily include (i) urban maintenance
and construction tax; (ii) education surcharge; (iii) local
education surcharge; (iv) property tax; (v) stamp duty; and (vi)
land use tax. Our taxes and surcharges increased by 52.9%
from RMB2.8 million for the six months ended June 30, 2024 to
RMB4.3 million for the six months ended June 30, 2025, which
was primarily attributable to the expansion of the overall revenue
scale of the Company and the increase in business volume,
resulting in increases in urban maintenance and construction
tax, education surcharge, local education surcharge and stamp
duty.
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Selling expenses

Our selling expenses primarily included (i) labor costs; (ii) travel
and transportation fees; (iii) market fees; (iv) exhibition fees; (v)
business entertainment fees; and (vi) business promotion fees.
Our selling expenses increased by 37.4% from RMB31.5 million
for the six months ended June 30, 2024 to RMB43.3 million
for the six months ended June 30, 2025, which was primarily
attributable to (i) an increase of RMB5.6 million in labor costs
as a result of the Company’s business development needs to
expand the marketing team and increase marketing personnel
and (i) a total increase of approximately RMB7.2 million in
various fees such as market fees, travel and transportation fees
and exhibition fees, due to the successful commercialization
of several new products of the Company, resulting in the
significant increase of marketing activities of the Group.

Administrative expenses

Our administrative expenses primarily consisted of (i) labor
costs; (i) consulting service fees; (iii) share-based payment;
(iv) depreciation and amortization expenses; (v) auditor’s
remuneration; (vi) travel and transportation expenses; and (vii)
office expenses, etc. Our administrative expenses decreased
by 20.7% from RMB18.4 million for the six months ended June
30, 2024 to RMB14.6 million for the six months ended June 30,
2025. This was primarily attributable to a decrease in consulting
service fees of intermediary institutions of RMB1.0 million for the
current period as compared to the corresponding period last
year.

EEEWED

HEHEM

BMOHEEERAEZZREOALIER ; (i)
EIRIBE : (INHHE (VBEEB (v
E¥BEEE RVIEBEEES - 1M
HHEERHEZE2024F6 A308 (E/~ A
AMARBI15EETIENI7T 4% EEE
202596 A30HIEAEAMARKA43.3
BEL EXZRARNARBIEERE
REZBEATEHEGGRE  SHASE
m-EBRATERENMARYES 6EET
K (i) AR B Z @R EMKINEREEL

B EZRRABE Z2RESZZREMGH
BMHARET2EET -

EEER

RMNERERETERFBEOALIER
(IFERREE ()OI  (v)ITER
HE (V)X (V) ERRBE
ViR BE - BMMWERBHAES
2024F6 A30B IEAAAMARKA18.45
B 20.7% 2 #H £20259F6 A30H Lk
NEAMARE146EETL - EXEHR
RARF N EEZRE AR EFRR D
ARBA0BETT °

sl




LEPU ScienTech Medical Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
LEORERRE (B8 ROBRATF

Management Discussion and Analysis

BEERE WD T

Research and development expenses

Our research and development expenses primarily consisted
of (i) labor costs; (i) materials, power and manufacturing
inspection fees; (i) depreciation and amortization expenses;
(iv) design and clinical trial fees; (v) share-based payment; (vi)
outsourced research and development expenses; and (vii) other
expenses. Our research and development expenses increased
by 17.0% from RMB21.7 million for the six months ended June
30, 2024 to RMB25.4 million for the six months ended June
30, 2025, primarily due to an increase in materials, power
and manufacturing inspection fees of RMB1.4 million; and an
increase in design and clinical trial fees of RMB1.0 million, as a
result of the addition of several new research and development
projects in the second half of 2024, which resulted in an
increase in the above two expenses for the current period as
compared to related expenses of the corresponding period last
year.

Financial expenses

Our financial expenses primarily consisted of (i) interest
expenses; (i) interest income; (iii) exchange gains or losses;
and (iv) handling charges. Our financial expenses increased by
30.1% from RMB-14.1 million for the six months ended June
30, 2024 to RMB-9.9 million for the six months ended June
30, 2025, primarily due to a decrease in interest income of
RMB3.8 million during the Reporting Period as compared to the
corresponding period last year due to the continuous decrease
in interest rates on various types of domestic deposits.

Loss on impairment of credit

Our loss on impairment of credit primarily represented provision
for impairment of accounts receivable and other receivables
during the Reporting Period. Our loss on impairment of
credit decreased by 66.0% from RMB7.1 million for the six
months ended June 30, 2024 to RMB2.4 million for the six
months ended June 30, 2025, primarily due to a decrease
in the expected credit loss rate of accounts receivable and a
period-on-period decrease in the provision for impairment of
credit calculated accordingly as a result of the optimization of
aging structure of the Group’s accounts receivable.
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Income tax expenses

Our income tax expenses increased by 20.2% from RMB23.9
million for the six months ended June 30, 2024 to RMB28.7
million for the six months ended June 30, 2025, which was
primarily attributable to the increase in taxable income as a
result of the increase in the Company’s results.

Net profit

As a result of the foregoing, our net profit for the Reporting
Period increased by 29.8% from RMB140.2 million for the six
months ended June 30, 2024 to RMB182.0 million for the six
months ended June 30, 2025.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The primary uses of cash are to fund the daily operations of
the business of the Group. For the six months ended June
30, 2025, the Group principally used cash generated from its
operating and financing activities and net proceeds from the
Global Offering to meet its demand of capital expenditures and
working capital. Going forward, the Company believes that its
liquidity requirements will be satisfied with a combination of cash
flows generated from our operating activities and other funds
raised from the capital markets from time to time. As of June
30, 2025, the Group had not used any financial instruments for
hedging purposes.

Cash flows

As of June 30, 2025, our cash and cash equivalents were
denominated in RMB, HK dollar, USD and Euro dollars. Our
total cash and cash equivalents increased by 17.8% from
RMB1,121.3 million as of December 31, 2024 to RMB1,321.1
million as of June 30, 2025, which was primarily attributable to
the net cash generated from operating activities of RMB166.8
million, resulting in an increase in cash and cash equivalents at
the end of the Reporting Period.

Borrowings

As of June 30, 2024 and 2025, we had no outstanding balance
of borrowings or unutilized banking facilities.
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BEERE WD T

Net current assets

Our net current assets decreased by 0.9% from RMB1,333.0
million as of December 31, 2024 to RMB1,321.2 million as
of June 30, 2025. Our net current assets position as of the
above dates was mainly attributable to our cash at bank and
on hand, accounts receivable, inventories, prepayments, other
receivables and certificates of deposit due within one year,
partially offset by our accounts payable, contract liabilities, other
payables, employee benefits payable, taxes payable and lease
liabilities due within one year. The decrease in our net current
assets was primarily attributable to an increase in the closing
balance of other payables of RMB215.5 million as of June 30,
2025 as a result of the declaration of final dividend for 2024,
an increase in cash at bank and on hand and certificates of
deposit due within one year of RMB142.9 million in aggregate,
an increase in accounts receivable of RMB38.7 million, and an
increase in prepayments of RMB13.6 million, a combination of
which caused a slight decrease in the net current assets.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals and Significant
Investments

We did not have any material acquisitions and disposals and
significant investments during the six months ended June 30,
2025.

Pledge of Assets

As of June 30, 2025, we did not pledge any of our assets.

Future Plans for Material Investments or Capital Asset

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Use of Net Proceeds
from Listing” in this report and the section headed “Future
Plans and Use of Proceeds” in the Prospectus, we did not have
detailed future plans for material investments or capital assets.

Capital Expenditure

Our total capital expenditure increased by 30.4% from
approximately RMB31.0 million for the six months ended
June 30, 2024 to approximately RMB40.4 million for the six
months ended June 30, 2025. Our capital expenditure primarily
included our purchase of equipment, purchase of intangible
assets and payment for research and development expenses
of capitalization. We funded these expenditures with cash
generated from our operating and financing activities.
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Capital Commitments

Our capital commitments decreased from approximately
RMB19.2 million as of December 31, 2024 to approximately
RMB3.3 million as of June 30, 2025, primarily in connection
with purchase of equipment, licensing of product technologies
and right of commercialization of products.

Contingent Liabilities

As of June 30, 2025, we did not have any material contingent
liabilities.

Foreign Exchange Risk Management

Our functional currency is RMB. Foreign exchange risk arises
when future commercial transactions or recognized assets
and liabilities are denominated in a currency that is not our
functional currency. We expose ourselves to foreign exchange
risk because certain of our accounts payable, accounts
receivable and cash at bank and on hand are denominated in
foreign currencies. We will mitigate such a risk by constantly
reviewing the economic situation and foreign exchange risk, and
applying hedging measures when necessary.

Employee and Remuneration Policy

As of June 30, 2025, we had 374 full-time employees
(December 31, 2024: 314), all of whom were based in China.
The total staff costs for the six months ended June 30, 2025
(including staff remuneration, bonuses, welfare cost and social
insurance fees etc.) amounted to approximately RMB55.4
million (including those capitalized staff costs of approximately
RMB6.3 million).

We primarily recruit our employees through recruitment
agencies, internal referrals and online recruiting channels,
including our corporate website, job search websites and
social networking platforms. We have adopted training
protocols, pursuant to which we provide on-board and regular
continuing trainings for our employees. As part of our human
resources strategy, we offer employees competitive salaries,
performance-based cash bonuses and other incentives.
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Indebtedness B

The following table sets forth the breakdown of our lease  NEREHIEZF/RBHRRMANTEEE EH

liabilities as of the dates indicated:— -
June 30, December 31,
2025 2024
2025% 20244
6A30H 12HA31H
RMB RMB
AR®T AR
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(RIEEE) (#g2&5t)
Lease liabilities HEBE 1,146,614.66 1,513,992.96
Key Financial Ratios FTEH B =
The following table sets forth our key financial ratios for the TRE|HINRERE S EER I8 EZE
period/year indicated:— FEH R
June 30, December 31,
2025 2024
2025% 20244
6HA30H 12HA31H
Liquidity ratio mENE &L
Current ratio BN & 5.3 times 5.3f% 16.8 times 16.8f%
Gearing ratio HEARE 13.4% 4.1%
(1) The calculation of current ratio is based on current assets (1) ARBEEEREZEHRIFEROM
divided by current liabilities as of the end of the period/ FEERURBAGEE -
year.

(2) The gearing ratio is calculated based on the Group’s (2 EEBBEERENREZHRIFLRHN

total liabilities divided by total assets as of the end of the REBEEBRERNEEBTEH -
period/year.
Current ratio T E

Our current ratio was 5.3 times and 16.8 times as of June 30, HZE2025F6 A30H K2024F 12 A 31
2025 and December 31, 2024, respectively. The decrease in H  BMOREELED 5 7R5.3(5%16.8
current ratio was primarily due to the change in current assets FomBLETRFEARIRDEETF
and current liabilities as discussed in the section headed “Net -l EERRDAEGEEDY
current assets”. 2.



INTERIM DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of an interim
dividend for the six months ended June 30, 2025 (six months
ended June 30, 2024: nil).

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor its subsidiaries had purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities (including
sale of treasury shares, if any) during the six months ended
June 30, 2025.

As at June 30, 2025, the Company did not hold any treasury
shares.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

As at June 30, 2025, none of the Directors, Supervisors or chief
executives of the Company had interests or short positions in
the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which will be required to be notified to our
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO or which will be required, pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register referred
to therein, or which will be required, pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
as set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules, to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ RIGHTS TO
ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the six months ended June 30, 2025 was
the Company or its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
that would enable the Directors or Supervisors to acquire
benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporates, and none of the
Directors, Supervisors or any of their spouses or children under
the age of 18 were granted any right to subscribe for the equity
or debt securities of the Company or any other body corporates
or had exercised any such right.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES

So far as the Directors are aware, as at June 30, 2025, the
following persons (other than the Directors, Supervisors and
chief executive of the Company) had interests or short positions
in the Shares or underlying Shares which were required to be
disclosed to the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO and recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

FERRM ARG RAHERMR G ZE
SRKRE

R2025%F6 A30H * MEEMA - THIA
T (WIES  BEERARFAESTHA
B)RBRMHIMEERMN P EERE(ES
KEREED) EXVEBZE 2 R E 3 /AR A
NABELBE(ES LB R $336
BHRERARRGFENES LM ER

Approximate
percentage in
the total issued
share capital of
the Company!
Name of Class of Number of  Long position/ BELTRT
Shareholders Nature of interests Shares Shares  short position® BEEHEZ
L] EonE Bin%aR RiZ®E e/ kEe BHasLy
Dr. Py s Interest in a controlled corporation  H Shares Long position (L)
FHEL NEEAERER Hi% 280,000,000 HEL) 80.75%
Lepu Medical™e%  Beneficial owner H Shares Long position (L)
SERE Y ERBEA HIR 277,200,000 HEL) 79.94%
Interest in a controlled corporation  H Shares Long position (L)
RREEE R HP% 2,800,000 HEL) 0.81%
Total: Long position (L)
CLl 280,000,000 HEL) 80.75%
Notes: PREE

1.

As at June 30, 2025, the total number of issued shares of the
Company was 346,749,997 shares.

The letter (L) denotes a long position in shares of the Company.

Lepu Medical held approximately 80.75% of the shareholding
interest of our Company, including approximately 0.81% indirect
shareholding interest through Target Medical and approximately
79.94% direct shareholding interest as of June 30, 2025. On
August 26, 2025, Lepu Medical disposed a total of 11,140,000
H shares of the Company (the “Disposal’). After the Disposal,
Lepu Medical held approximately 77.54% of the shareholding
interest of our Company, including approximately 0.81% indirect
shareholding interest through Target Medical and approximately
76.73% direct shareholding interest. For further details of the
Disposal, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated August 26, 2025.

Lepu Medical held the entire share interest in Target Medical and
was therefore deemed to be interested in the Shares held by
Target Medical under the SFO. Dr. Pu is the actual controller of
Lepu Medical and was therefore deemed to be interested in the H
Shares held by Lepu Medical under the SFO.

1.
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Save as disclosed above, as at June 30, 2025, the Directors
were not aware of any other person (other than the Directors,
Supervisors and chief executive of the Company) who had any
interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares
which were required to be disclosed under Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or to be entered in the register required to
be kept pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM LISTING

The Shares were listed on the Stock Exchange on the Listing
Date. The net proceeds received from the Global Offering (after
deducting the estimated underwriting commissions and other
fees and expenses payable by the Company in connection with
the Global Offering) was approximately HK$567.3 million.

The following table sets forth the planned use and actual use of
the net proceeds from the Global Offering as of June 30, 2025:
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Br ESCRTiEEE SN - 7220256 A30H ¢
BB METAEMAL (WIEE
ECEERAQARSTRAR)REG
AR D P B RIR (GBS R E &M
FEXVEE2RID BT HEE - HABEEF
PCEH R E GG ) 336 (§FTat &5
MRz ESESAR

IHRERABHEAE

AREROT LA REBRM LT o A
REB BB ERBINAERIFE (K
HBARA 2 REE RN OGS H T
S REMERNFAXEK)AR567.388
BT

TREHEZE20254%6 A30H FEREEH
BSREFENFIRERER RS

Unutilized Utilized Unutilized Expected
Net proceeds  amountas of  amount from amount as timeline for
from the January 1, January 1, 2025 of June 30, fully utilizing the
Global Offering 2025 to June 30, 2025 2025  unutilized amount®
BE2025F 205F1A1AE  HE2025% RuBA
RHBE 1B18  2025%6A30A 6A30H FHARED
Use of Proceeds FeRERE FERERE REIRMA BHARE KEIRME sz
(HK$ million) ~ (HK$ million)  (HK$ million)  (HKS$ million)
(EH#T) (BE#ET) (EH#T) (BH#ET)
To fund our research and AREEBRAES 2876 140.2 19.3 1209 Before
development activities December 31, 2027
2027%F12 A31 Bl
For our sales and marketing RREEREHEE 137.9 1038 174 86.4 Before
activities December 31, 2027
2027412 A31 Bl
To expand our production capactty — FIRMRFTERL 284 189 70 19 Before
and strengthen our manufacturing 1% E%EE December 31, 2027
capabilties 2027412 A31 BRI
To fund potential strategic RETNERRE 56.7 437 18.6 25.1 Before
investments and acquisitions RiEREES December 31, 2027
2027412 A31 BT
For our working capital and AReEEEs R 56.7 459 6.6 39.3 Before
general corporate purposes —RARAR December 31, 2027
202712 A31 Bl
Total &t 567.3 3525 689 2836
Note: Mz -
(1)  The expected timeline for fully utilizing the unutilized amount (1) L EAREEHAREHRIERNTES

disclosed above is based on the best estimates made by the
Board pursuant to the latest information up to the date of this
report.
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As disclosed on pages 485 to 492 of the Prospectus, based on
the current business plan, the Company intended to implement
the use of proceeds from the Global Offering in the five financial
years from 2023 to 2027. The Board currently expects full
utilization of the net proceeds raised from the Global Offering
by December 31, 2027, subject to changes in light of the
Company’s evolving business needs and changing market
conditions.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on
the principles and code provisions as set out in the CG Code
contained in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules and the Company
has adopted the CG Code as its own code of corporate
governance.

Throughout the Reporting Period, the Company has complied
with the code provisions as set out in the CG Code, except for
the deviation from the below code provisions.

Pursuant to code provision C.2.1 in the CG Code as set out
in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules, the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. Ms. Chen Juan (fR%8) is
currently serving as the chairman of the Board as well as the
chief executive officer of the Company. She has been primarily
involved in developing overall corporate and business strategies
of our Group and making significant business and operational
decisions of our Group. Our Directors consider that vesting the
roles of both the chairman of the Board and the chief executive
officer of the Company in Ms. Chen is beneficial to the business
prospects of the Group by ensuring consistent leadership to
the Group as well as prompt and effective decision making
and implementation. In addition, our Directors believe that this
structure will not impair the balance of power and authority
between the Board and the management of the Company, given
that: (1) decision to be made by our Board requires approval by
at least a majority of our Directors; (2) Ms. Chen and the other
Directors are aware of and undertake to fulfil their fiduciary
duties as Directors, which require, among other things, that she
acts for the benefit and in the best interests of our Company
and will make decisions for our Company accordingly; (3) the
balance of power and authority is ensured by the operations
of the Board, which consists of one executive Director, three
non-executive Directors and three independent non-executive
Directors, and has a fairly strong independence element; and
(4) the overall strategic and other key business, financial, and
operational policies of our Company are made collectively after
thorough discussion at both Board, and senior management
levels.
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The Board shall nevertheless review the structure and
composition of the Board from time to time in light of prevailing
circumstances, to maintain a high standard of corporate
governance practices of the Company.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in
Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct
regarding the transactions of securities of the Company by its
Directors, Supervisors and the relevant employees who would
likely possess inside information of the Company. Specific
enquiry has been made to all Directors and Supervisors of
the Company and all of them have confirmed that they have
complied with the Model Code during the six months ended
June 30, 2025.

CHANGES IN DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’
INFORMATION

Mr. Wang Xinglin (E£##K) ceased to be the shareholder
representative Supervisor and the chairman of the second
session of the Board of Supervisors in May. For further details,
please refer to the announcement of the Company dated May
11, 2025.

The Board of Supervisors proposed the appointment of Ms.
Wang Yong (£K) as a Supervisor and the chairman of the
second session of the Board of Supervisors. The proposed
appointment of the Supervisor is subject to the approval of the
Shareholders by way of ordinary resolutions at the shareholder’s
general meeting of the Company. For further details, please
refer to the announcement of the Company dated July 18,
2025.

Ms. Chan Ka Lai Vanessa has been appointed as an
independent non-executive director of China Renaissance
Holdings Limited (ZEEERIFARBERAF]), a company listed
on the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 1911), since June 2025
and an independent non-executive director of Hunan Junxin
Environmental Protection Co., Ltd. (I EZRERNDBR A F),
a company listed on the ChiNext Market of the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange (Stock Code: 301109), since August 2025.
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LEPU ScienTech Medical Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
EOREBEMNE (L8) ROBRAA

Other Information

Save as disclosed above, there has been no other change in
the Directors’ and Supervisors’ information which is required
to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules
since the Company’s last published annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises two independent non-executive
Directors, namely Ms. Chan Ka Lai Vanessa and Mr. Zheng
Yufeng, and one non-executive Director, namely Mr. Zhu
Guanfu.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the unaudited interim
financial information of the Group for the six months ended June
30, 2025 together with the Group’s auditors, BDO China Shu
Lun Pan Certified Public Accountants LLP, and have discussed
with the management the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group and its internal controls and financial
reporting matters.

SCOPE OF WORK OF BDO CHINA SHU LUN
PAN CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS LLP

The figures in respect of the Group’s unaudited interim financial
information and the related notes thereto for the six months
ended June 30, 2025 as set out in this interim report have been
reviewed by the Group’s auditor, BDO China Shu Lun Pan
Certified Public Accountants LLP.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Save as disclosed in this report, there are no material
subsequent events undertaken by the Group after June 30,
2025 and up to the date of this report.

By order of the Board
Chen Juan
Chairman and Executive Director

Shanghai, the People’s Republic of China
August 22, 2025
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Review Report

ERWE

Xinkuaishi Baozi [2025] No. ZG12748

To the Shareholders of LEPU ScienTech Medical
Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.:

We have reviewed the attached interim financial statements
of LEPU ScienTech Medical Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.,
including the consolidated and parent company’s balance sheet
as at June 30, 2025, the consolidated and parent company’s
income statements, the consolidated and parent company’s
statements of cash flows, and the consolidated and parent
company’s statements of changes in owners’ equity, and notes
to the interim financial statements for the six months ended
June 30, 2025. It is the responsibility of the management of
LEPU ScienTech Medical Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. to
prepare the interim financial statements in accordance with the
provisions of “Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises
No. 32 — Interim Financial Report”, and our responsibility is to
issue a review report on the interim financial statements on the
basis of the implementation of the review work.

We performed the review work in accordance with the
provisions of “Chinese Certified Public Accountants Review
Standard No. 2101 — Review of Financial Statements”. The
standard requires us to plan and conduct review work to
obtain limited assurance as to whether the interim financial
statements are free of material misstatement. The review is
mainly limited to the interviews with the relevant personnel of
LEPU ScienTech Medical Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. and
the implementation of analysis procedures on the financial data,
and the degree of assurance provided is lower than that of
the audit. We did not conduct the audit and therefore do not
express an audit opinion.

Based on our review, we have not noticed anything that would
lead us to believe that the above interim financial statements
have not been prepared in all material respects in accordance
with the provisions of “Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises No. 32 — Interim Financial Reporting”.

BDO China Shu Lun Pan
Certified Public Accountants LLP
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Certified Public Accountant of China: Wang Na
FhEIGE M & ated -
Certified Public Accountant of China: Wang Ping

B CE M & EHED - R

Shanghai, China
hE. Lt

August 22, 2025
2025 8A22H



Assets

Current assets:

Cash at bank and on hand

Settlement reserve

Lending funds

Financial assets held-for-trading

Derivative financial assets

Notes receivable

Accounts receivable

Receivable financing

Prepayments

Insurance premium receivable

Reinsurance premium receivable

Reserves for reassurance
contracts receivable

Other receivables

Financial assets purchased
under agreements to resell

Inventories

Including: Data resources

Contract assets

Assets held for sale

Non-current assets due within
one year

Other current assets

Total current assets

BE
MEEE :

ERES
HEEENE
FHES
RHMTHEE
MTEEREE
eSS
TR

U ERE
EIRE ]
MR E

R RERSR
YA RERERE

H A YK
EARETREE

e
B BEAR
AREE

REGEAE

—EREHNFERYEE

HtpReEE

nBRESH

Interim Report 2025
—Z-AHH

Consolidated Balance Sheet

EHEERESR

(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated)

(BREFRIGERASN - SREMEIRBARKTT)

As at June 30, As at December 31,

2025 2024

(Unaudited) (Audited)

Note 202556 A30H 2024512 A31H
B sE (RAEEE) (K2E5T)
VA 1,323,679,495.53 1,125,405,765.25

VIR 109,033,399.92 70,327,733.16

Vit 33,617,724.70 20,033,452.39
VI 6,694,043.25 1,907,952.60
IXA 96,491,122.21 87,241,588.03

X+ 52,595,875.17 107,974,139.89

3,281,466.98 4,5631,884.50

1,625,393,127.76 1,417,422,515.82




LEPU ScienTech Medical Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.

EORBRENE (L8) ROBRAA

Consolidated Balance Sheet

EHEERER

(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated)

(BRIFRIERRSN - BN AARETT)

Assets BE

Non-current assets: FRBEE -
Loans and advances granted BREFRMER
Debt investments EERE
Other debt investments HinEEHRE
Long-term receivables REEUHK
Long-term equity investments RERERE

Investments in other equity
instruments

HtgEmTARE

Other non-current financial assets Hindemsep i E
Investment properties REUEE
Fixed assets EEEE
Construction in progress TERTRE
Productive biological assets HEEENEE
Oil and gas assets HREE
Right-of-use assets FREEE
Intangible assets B EE
Including: Data resources He: BEBER
Development expenses R H
Including: Data resources He: BEBER
Goodwill Bl
Long-term deferred expenses REGHER
Deferred income tax assets BLEMENEE
Other non-current assets EtIEmEEE
Total non-current assets FnEBEESH
Total assets BEMH

The notes to the financial statements published on pages 60 to
100 are an integral part of the financial statements.

Note
BisE

XI4—
Xi+=

Xi+=
WH=—=

XIV+

XV+H

As at June 30,
2025
(Unaudited)
202556 A30H
(RIEEFR)

7,341,505.11
113,323,533.49
2,269,002.24

3,435,947.68
241,046,312.68
153,372,652.62

48,281,830.04

As at December 31,
2024

(Audited)
2024512 A31H
(& &5T)

7,451,830.95
116,567,671.35

4,051,871.92
250,636,543.43

137,060,996.47

48,281,830.04

190,417.80
11,897,503.12 12,787,218.28
72,706,103.60 88,580,534.26

653,674,390.58 665,608,914.50
2,279,067,518.34 2,083,031,430.32

TIEHRFECOEEF 100 BN B REK M5+

R BHREROERE S
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

EHEERESR

(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated)

(BREFRIGERASN - SREMEIRBARKTT)

As at June 30, As at December 31,

2025 2024
(Unaudited) (Audited)
Note 2025%6H30AH 2024%12 A31H
Liabilities and owners’ equity BEMMEEER B sE (RIEEE) (&)
Current liabilities: MBEE:
Short-term borrowings K HEAfER
Loans from central bank AR RERITIE X
Placements from banks and other KFAE®
financial institutions
Financial liabilities held-for-trading RHMhEeHERE
Derivative financial liabilities TESRERE
Notes payable ERNEE
Accounts payable S BR TR XVIF75 25,630,824.83 31,393,102.65
Advances from customers FEWHIE
Contract liabilities ERAE Xvil++ 15,218,576.27 15,068,531.19
Securities sold under ENOESREER
agreements to repurchase
Deposits from customers and BRI R E TR
interbanks
Receiving from vicariously traded REEEZHK
securities
Receiving from vicariously sold REABEFHR
securities
Employee benefits payable PR T 7B XVl 4,289,290.45 9,104,354.88
Taxes payable ERTHE XX+ 33,284,412.59 18,798,067.87
Other payables H R = 223,204,071.62 7,668,902.54
Fee and commission payable ENFEBRAS
Reinsured accounts payable & D RIRFR
Liabilities held for sale REGERE
Non-current liabilities due within —FREBNFERBEE
one year 2,168,083.30 2,056,734.65
Other current liabilities HirmBaE 414,857.86 332,670.74
Total current liabilities nBAREH 304,210,116.92 84,422,364.52
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LEPU ScienTech Medical Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.

BUOREREMNE (L8) ROBRDA

Consolidated Balance Sheet

EHEERER

(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated)

(BRErRIGERASN - 2REMHIBARET)

Liabilities and owners’ equity

Non-current liabilities:
Reserve fund for insurance
contracts
Long-term borrowings
Bonds payable
Including: Preference shares
Perpetual bonds
Lease liabilities
Long-term payable
Long-term employee benefits
payable
Estimated liabilities
Deferred income
Deferred income tax liabilities
Other non-current liabilities

Total non-current liabilities
Total liabilities

Owners’ equity:
Share capital
Other equity instruments
Including: Preference shares

Perpetual bonds
Capital reserve
Less: Treasury shares
Other comprehensive income
Special reserve
Surplus reserve
Provision for general risks
Retained earnings
Total equity attributable to
shareholders of the Company

Non-controlling interests

Total owners’ equity

Total liabilities and owners’ equity REMMREEESEH

BEMMA &S

FRPALE :
RreREES

EHEMR
B

Al
RIS
ELFRERAR
HipIFRBAR

FnBAREH
REEGH

AR
B
AT A
Hoh: BAR

XA fE
AR
. :
Hofs 2 st
WHHE
BB
—RAREH
RORA
BENEAT
ik ot
SEBR S

CEEX -

Note
BisE

XXI=+—

XXI=+=

The notes to the financial statements published on pages 60 to
100 are an integral part of the financial statements.

As at June 30,

As at December 31,

2025 2024
(Unaudited) (Audited)
202556 A30H 202412 A31H
(RiEE) (& &5T)
1,146,614.66 1,513,992.96
526,887.00
45,675.04
1,673,501.66 1,559,668.00
305,883,618.58 85,982,032.52
346,749,997.00 346,749,997.00

1,340,628,573.36

285,805,329.40

1,973,183,899.76

1,331,533,364.64

318,766,036.16

1,997,049,397.80

1,973,183,899.76

1,997,049,397.80

2,279,067,518.34

2,083,031,430.32

TIE R FE 60 B E 5100 B #) I B R KM 5E

R BERROEREED ©
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Consolidated Income Statement

BOHRIRR

(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated)

(BREFRIGERASN - SREMEIRBARKTT)

Six months ended June 30,
#E6A30H L EA
Note 2025 2024
ltem A iz 20255 20045
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEH) (REE:T)
. Total operating income — ERERA 329,705,338.78  249,100,148.65
Including: Operating income A ERHA XAI=+=  329,705,338.78  249,100,148.65
Interest income MEHA
Premium earned BRRE
Income for handling charges and FEERESUA
commissions
Il Total operating cost = BXBRA 123,008,408.82  82,695,713.46
Including: Operating cost ERE -+ 77 XAIZ+=  45358,141.85  22,430,274.82
Interest expense Mgt
Handling charges and commissions FEERAEH
Refunded premiums RRE
Net amount of compensation payout BATLEE
Net amount withdrawn for insurance RORRECERSTE
contract reserves
Policy dividend expense REAFIZH
Reinsured expense HRER
Taxes and surcharges He kMM 4,311,640.12 2,819,277.61
Selling expenses HEER XXVZFHE  43,250,901.44  31,485,870.27
Administrative expenses EEER XXVZ+H  14,605208.57  18,413,535.52
Research and development expenses HEER XXVIZF75 25,354,837.54 21,671,903.41
Financial expenses HBER XVIZ+HE  -0,872,32020  -14,125,148.17
Including: Interest expenses Ed:f8EA 74,169.07 85,408.45
Interest income MERA 9,500,904.56  13,278,075.95
Add: Other income e Etog 3,805,091.04 953,389.05
Investment income (loss expressed with “-' FEME (BRM -] 55E5) 2,606,905.31 2,056,166.79
Including: Income from investment in associates B HEROENAROENRENS
and joint ventures
Gains from derecognition of financial DERRAGT RN REAELL
assets measured at amortised cost Bl
Exchange gain (loss expressed with ') B sl (IR0 - SRHE5))
Net exposure hedging benefits FHOERKE (BXRUA-]RES))
(loss expressed with *-")
Gains from change in fair value NREEEENE (BXN[-15E3])
(loss expressed with *-") 1,601,780.81
Loss on impairment of credt ERRERX (BXU-]RES])
(loss expressed with *-') XXVIL= -2,425,491.73 -7,126,924.40

Loss on impairment of assets

o

(loss expressed with “-")
Gains from disposal of asset

(loss expressed with “-*)

BERERX (BRI-1HE5])
BERE et (RAT-13E5])



LEPU ScienTech Medical Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.

EORBRENE (L8) ROBRAA

Consolidated Income Statement

BOHRIER

(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated)

(BRErRIGERASN - 2REMHIBARET)

ltem HR

Il Operating profit (loss expressed with “-") =g
Adad: Non-operating income
Less: Non-operating expenses
IV, Total profit before tax (total loss expressed with “") I »
Less: Income tax expense
V. Net profit (net loss expressed with *-") Fil
() Classified by continuity of operations
1. Net profit from continuing operations
(net loss expressed with *-")
2. Net profit from discontinued operations
(net loss expressed with *-")
(I)  Classified by ownership
1. Net profit attributable to shareholders
of the parent company
(net loss expressed with “-")
2. Net profit attributable to non-controlling
interests (net loss expressed with *-')
VI, Net other comprehensive income after tax e
Net other comprehensive income after tax attributable
to shareholders of the Company
() Other comprehensive income that may not be
subsequently reclassified to profit and loss
1.~ Change in remeasurement of defined
benefit plans
2. Share of other comprehensive income
accounted for using equity method that
will not be reclassified to profit or loss
3. Change in fair value of investments in other
equity instruments
4. Changes in fair value of credit risks
of the Company

Note
it
XM (BENU[-150E5)
m: EEMREA
B BEMNTH
MEBE (FEEEU-5EF)
B EHER XXXZ 7

R (RERIAT- | REF)
() REEHEENE

1. REEEEHE
CRESHRI -1 SRE5)

2. RIEBEFNE
CRESHRI -1 SRE5)

(2) BHERRELR
1. BERBAARROENE
CRESHRI - |55
2. DUBRBRR (FERIAT-1REG])

Rtz #E
BENRLRMAENEMESRENREFE

(=) FRENBEREN SR NE
1. EFAERER G HRYE

2. BRETTRERRNEME IE

3. EUBRTARELAREES

4 CEASERERLAEES

Six months ended June 30,
HE6A30ALNER

2025 2024
20255 2004F
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(RHEERH) (REET)
210,773,434.58  163,888,847.44
251,841.94
5,609.34 3,478.52
210,767,825.24  164,137,210.86
28,743,533.86 23,908,744.48
182,024,291.38  140,228,466.38
182,024,291.38  140,228,466.38
182,024,291.38  140,228,466.38



Interim Report 2025
—T-HHH

Consolidated Income Statement

BOHRIRR

(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated)

(BREFRIGERASN - SREMEIRBARKTT)

Six months ended June 30,
HE6A30ALNER
Note 2025 2024
Item JEf fite 20256 2004

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEH) (REE:T)

(I Other comprehensive income that will be () BESBEBRNEMEA S
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss
1. Share of other comprehensive income 1. EaililgganErgala

accounted for using equity method that
will be reclassified to profit or loss

2. Change In fair value of other debt 2. EtERERAAAEBEED
investments

3. Amount of financial assets reclassified into 3. EREEENEFA
other comprehensive income LYl Gtk

4. Provision for credit impairment of other 4, Elﬁ!ﬁ’é&ﬁf% AREEE
debt investments

5. Cash flow hedging reserve 5 BenEEgEE

6. Exchange differences arising from 6. NEHBRRTEZER
translation of foreign currency financial
statements

7. Others 7. Hfp

Net other comprehensive income attributable tonon-  SERN D HRREEMSAWENFE FE
controling interests after tax

VI Total comprehensive income T Fakaes 182,024,291.38  140,228,466.38
Total comprehensive income attributable to BEREAFMAENG AN RET
shareholders of the Company 182,024,291.38  140,228,466.38
Total comprehensive income attributable to non- BERVERENG AN RS
controlling interests
VI, Earnings per share: N Bk
() Basic earnings per share (RMB/share) (=) EAERKE (/&) XX= 0.5249 0.4044
Iy Diluted earnings per share (RMB/share) (Z) BESREE (T/R) XX= 0.5249 0.4044

The notes to the financial statements published on pages 60 to FIENREOEZEF 100 B B IS RzZ M T
100 are an integral part of the financial statements. B SRR AR ER D
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

EHBREETRER

(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated)

(BRErRIGERASN - 2REMHIBARET)

Six months ended June 30,
#E6A30A L AR
Note 2025 2024
ltem 18R firzE 20255 20045
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEH) (REEH)
. Cash flows from operating activities - QBEEHELMRERE
Cash recelved from sale of goods or rendering of HEAm  RESKRINERE
services 327,876,829.99 237,746,131.90
Net increase in deposits from customer and due fom  BEFHNRAEEHAEEE NS
bank and other financial institutions
Net increase in borrowings from central bank MR RETEFFEMNE
Net increase in borrowings from other financial AEtSREERAESFENE
institutions
Cash received from premium income from direct KRRRARRENGHRE
insurance contracts
Net cash received from reinsurance busingss W BREBREE
Net increase in policyholders’ deposits and RPGEREETFEME
investments
Cash received from interests, handling charges and milg  FEERAHES
commissions
Net increase in loans from other banks and other FAESFEME
financial institutions
Net increase n repurchase business EEXKESFEME
Net cash received from agency purchases and sales ~ REEEEAMEINELFE
of securities
Cash received from tax refund WEMHERE 11,772.84 14,936.07
Cash received relating to other operating activities WEEHEELESERNRS 20,949,117.74 8,279,194.86
Sub-total of cash inflows from operating activities BEEHHSTNN G 348,837,720.57 246,040,262.83
Cash paid for goods and services BEEM  BXSEIMANES 32,032,322.88 28,195,096.26
Net increase n loans and advances to customers RPERRBTFEME
Net increase in central bank and interbank deposits B %fﬁﬁ*ﬂﬂ% FEFE NS
Cash paid for claims of direct insurance contracts IHRFRAARNFENR
Net increase in lending funds FHESFEME
Cash paid for interests, handling charges and TS FEERELNRE
commissions
Cash paid for the policy dividends SNREAFSES
Cash paid to and on behalf of employees THEBRTURAB TR 51,518,460.72 37,431,078.51
Payments of taxes and surcharges TRMEBERE 49,487,311.16 39,290,919.77
Cash paid relating to other operating activities TNEpBERLEHEENES 48,954,504.65 37,635,310.43
Sub-total of cash outflows from operating activities BRESHEMM G 181,992,599.41 142,552,404.97
Net cash flows from operating activities BEIDELNALRERH 166,845,121.16 103,487,857.86
IIl.  Cash flows from investing activities Z REEHELNRERE
Cash received from disposal of investments Bk EE 52 1,685,000,000.00 405,521,824.46
Cash received from investment income RERERRNEMRE 2,606,905.31
Net cash received from disposal of fixed assets, REETAE  BVEENLH
intangible assets and other long-term assets RBEENENRSFE 4,555.54
Net cash received from the disposal of subsidiaries  EEFA TR EM L % BT I3|&
and other business entities BeFE
Cash received relating to other investing activities WEIEEREEDERNRS
Sub-total of cash inflows from investing activities REEHRSRANG 1,687,606,905.31 405,526,380.00




Interim Report 2025
—E2-_FHRK

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

EHRERER

(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated)

ltem R

Cash paid for acquisition of fixed assets, intangible BRETEE  BMAEN

assets and other long-term assets Bt RHBER AR e
Cash paid for investments REZNNRE
Net increase in pledged loans EREFFENR
Net cash paid for acquisition of subsidiaries and REFARRAME R B
other business units BeFE
Cash paid relating to other investing activities ZHEMARA DRSS
Sub-total of cash outflows from investing activities RERBRE RN
Net cash flows from investing activities BREHELNRQRERE
lIl. Cash flows from financing activities = ERIHELMESRE
Cash received from capital contributions el
Including: Cash received by subsidiaries from B FRRRKDERERE
recelving investments made by minority interest lekosa
Cash received from borrowings BEEFKEOR S
Cash received relating to other financing activities WEEHESEEHERNRS
Sub-total of cash inflows from financing activities SEEFREMAN G
Cash repayment of borrowings BREELANRE
Cash payments for distribution of dividends, profits ARBH - FIERERFE
or interest expenses ZfNRE
Including: Dividends and profits paid by subsidiaries £ : FRRRMADHRRL
to non-controlling interests WR# - M
Cash payments for other financing activities SNEMEEEEHERNRS
Sub-total of cash outflows from financing activities SRR ML/t
Net cash flows from financing activities ERERELNRGRERE

IV. Effect of change in foreign exchange rate on - ERORHALRESSRNNKE
cash and cash equivalents
V. Netincrease in cash and cash equivalents I ReRBESENIENE
Add: Beginning balance of cash and n: ENRe AL SRMNE
cash equivalents
VI Ending balance of cash and cash equivalents 7+ HXRERALER ML

The notes to the financial statements published on pages 60 to
100 are an integral part of the financial statements.

(BREFRIGERRSN - @B AAREIT)
Six months ended June 30,
EE6A30H L EA

Note 2025 2024
Fiat 20258 2024F
(Unaudited) (Unaudit‘ed)
(REEH) (REET)
40,409,777.01 31,001,867.00
1,615,000,000.00 605,537,600.00
1,655,409,777.01 636,539,467.00
32,197,128.30 -231,013,087.00

526,887.00

526,887.00
489,688.92 895,216.20
489,688.92 895,216.20
37,198.08 -895,216.20
635,448.75 634,963.59
199,714,896.29 -127,785,481.75

1,121,338,232.90 1,212,083,560.17
1,321,053,129.19 1,084,248,078.42

TIE N F 60 B ZE 5100 B H) B 5 R KT 5E
R BHREROERE D

STl
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LEPU ScienTech Medical Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
EZORERRE (£8) RHBRAR

Notes to the 2025 Interim Financial Statements

—ECHF¥FEMBHRRME

(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated)

(BRERERS  2REMHIBARET)

I. BASIC INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY — - ATFEFER

LEPU ScienTech Medical Technology (Shanghai) Co.,
Ltd. (referred to as “the Company” or “the Group”) was
established as a joint-stock company in January 2021
and subsequently listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited in November 2022. As
an investment holding company, the Company and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in manufacturing
and sales of interventional treatment series occluders for
defective congenital heart disease (HRIE 1 2 K 1E /RS
N ABE Z 5| E#22) and the research and development
of biological valve ((E¥3t %) for heart disease.

As of June 30, 2025, the Company’s cumulative issued
share capital totaled 346,749,997 shares.

Social credit code: 91310000MA1FL7PF84.
Registered address: Room 201, Building 41, No.258

Xinzhuan Road, Xingiao Town, Songjiang District,
Shanghai.

Parent company of the Company: Lepu Medical
Technology (Beijing) Co., Ltd.

LELRBERE (L8 RNHDER
AR (A TEBIARF k[ AE
E]) 2202151 BRI NN A
RAF - 2022F 11 AEFBHAR
SARARER LM - XAFE]Z
—REBEBRAA - AAE REKH
B AR E EH E B SR O B
BN ARERG S EREEREE
FNET O ER B0 A Y R AR B o

HZE2025F6 A30H IF - ARAAR
TR I TR AN 4B $0346,749,997 A% -

ARAlg—EERNKE
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(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated)

(BREHRERS  SREMIRBARKT)

Il. BASIS OF PREPARATION FOR THE HMEREHREER
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(1) Basis of preparation (—) REER

AEBUFELERER 1B

The Group prepares financial statements on a going

()

concern basis, based on actual transactions and
events, in accordance with the relevant provisions
of China Accounting Standard for Business
Enterprises No. 32 — Interim Financial Report issued
by the Ministry of Finance, as well as the disclosure
requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The notes to the interim financial statements are
appropriately simplified relative to the notes to the
annual financial statements and do not include
all information and disclosures presented in the
annual financial statements. These interim financial
statements should be read in conjunction with the
financial statements for the year 2024 prepared by
the Group.

Going concern

There are no material matters affecting the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, and there
are no material concerns about the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern in the next 12
months.

BERBEANIZHNER &
IRET AR E & at %
AIZE325% — EPHHEﬂk#&ﬁW)
E’]*HEQ%EIE ! J//{&<<%£’/% =)
REMERRAZS TR
ar) - <<%.5>‘%’&ET1I%WIJ>>E”\JB§ZL-?§
RE R B TEREK o

A ER R R AR F S
M mAMEMSETTEE
Wt YT BEEFENK
WERPIROFIEEEMERE
WA o 2N HA B 75 R 2% g B2 K
EERERA2024F E BB 53R
F<—OBIE -

(2) BREE

AEBT R EYEREME
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LEPU ScienTech Medical Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
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Notes to the 2025 Interim Financial Statements

—ECHF¥FEMBHRRME

(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated)

(BRERERS  2REMHIBARET)

—ﬁ—

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

1)

()

@)

(4)

(5)

Statement of compliance with the Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises

These financial statements comply with the
requirements of the Accounting Standards for
Business Enterprises issued by the Ministry of
Finance, and truly and completely reflect the
consolidated and the parent company’s financial
position as of June 30, 2025, as well as the
consolidated and parent company’s operating
results and cash flows from January to June 2025.

Accounting period

The accounting year is from 1 January to 31
December of each calendar year. This interim
financial statements cover the period from January
1 to June 30.

Operating cycle
The Group’s operating cycle is 12 months.
Reporting currency

The Group’s reporting currency is Renminbi
(“RMB").

Main accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of interim financial information
requires management layers to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of accounting policies and the
presentation of the amounts of assets, liabilities
and gains and losses. According to the definition,
accounting estimates will very rarely be equivalent
to the relevant actual results. In the preparation of
the interim financial statements, the major sources
of significant judgment and estimated uncertainties
made by management layers in the application
of the Group’s accounting policies are consistent
with those applied in the 2024 annual financial
statements.
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(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated)

(BREHRERS  SREMIRBARKT)

lll. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES = EEEBRR EEHEE ()
AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)
(6) Changes in significant accounting policies and (R) EEETEERME T ETNE
accounting estimates g
1. Changes in significant accounting policies 1 EBEZESIHKFREE
Not applicable. E::3
2. Changes in significant accounting estimates 2. EBEZI 5 E
Not applicable. E::3
IV. TAX R\
(1) Major types of taxes and rates (—) EEBBEMBH =X
Type Tax basis Tax rate (%)
B ALK T (%)
VAT The VAT payable is the difference between output tax (calculated
based on sales of goods and taxable service income under the
tax laws) and the deductible input tax of the period 5,6,13
EEHR BRER T ENHESMMER S B RARER T EHARE
ENGE B EMEERRRER - 2R D REIEER 5:613
Urban maintenance and Based on value-added tax and consumption tax paid
construction tax 5,7
YT A o R RR B REBRHRIZET KB ERAH 57
Enterprise income tax Based on taxable profits 15, 25

TEMEHR MBS BT 115 28
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Notes to the 2025 Interim Financial Statements

—ECHF¥FEMBHRRME

(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated)

(BRERERS  2REMHIBARET)

IV. TAX (Continued) RIA (48)

(1) Major types of taxes and rates (Continued) (—) EEBBEMBR (F)
Companies subject to different enterprise income GEDRBEMSHRE AT
tax rates are disclosed as follows: FEH - BEIBERHA

Tax rate (%)

Name of tax payer TR H FrS 51 3% 2 (%)

Shanghai Shape Memory Alloy Co., Ltd.  _E#BFREEEESHME AR AR 15

Lepu ScienTech (Beijing) Medical ZELFR (IR BEMEBR AR 15
Technology Co., Ltd.

(2) Tax incentives (=) BREE

1. In December 2023, Shanghai Shape Memory 1. ARQRRWMFRAE LB
Alloy Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company, HKEeEEEMBAER
was approved and recognized as a high-tech NAEIR2023F 12 AW
enterprise by the Shanghai Municipal FETERERME S
Science and Technology Commission, the g - LEWHEE -
Shanghai Municipal Finance Bureau, and AR EETH
the Shanghai Taxation Bureau of the State BREERE RS
Administration of Taxation with a certificate Bt BERR
number of “GR202331006835" and a validity [GR202331006835] -
period of three years. In 2025, it enjoyed the BB AE=F - 20254F
preferential tax policy of 15% income tax rate ZX RIS R AT
for high-tech enterprises. BSRBER15%B U

BEBR -

2. The subsidiary of the Company, Lepu 2 ARAHFRABILEIEL
ScienTech (Beijing) Medical Technology Co., Z(ER)BEEREE
Ltd., was approved and recognized as a fRAAHKR2024F10 A
high-tech enterprise by the Beijing Municipal KR mBIERNE 8
Science and Technology Commission, 2 JRWHERB -
Beijing Municipal Finance Bureau, and Beijing XBEBRBIERTH
Municipal Taxation Bureau of the State KR ERTE AT
Administration of Taxation in October 2024. R & Rm
The high-tech enterprise approval certificate TEREZERS B
number is “GS202411000650” and is valid [GS202411000650] -
for three years. In 2025, it enjoyed the BERHAE=F - 2025F
preferential tax policy of 15% income tax rate EX R
for high-tech enterprises. BHHEB15%KFH K

BREBR -
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(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated)

(BREHRERS  SREMIRBARKT)

V. CASH AT BANK AND ON HAND i RESER

As at As at

June 30, December 31,

2025 2024

20255%E6HA30H 2024 12A31H

(Unaudited) (Audited)

[tem TH B (KRiEErL) (£&=-E)

Cash on hand EfFEE 9,848.12 9,848.12

Bank deposits RITEHK 1,323,669,647.41 1,125,395,917.13
Other monetary funds HihE¥KES

Total a5t 1,323,679,495.53 1,125,405,765.25

Including: Cash at bank and on  E /R : FHIEEINFRIBLEEE
hand deposited

overseas
Amounts deposited EREEINEESED
abroad with 2 3 Rl Y IR

restrictions on
repatriation of funds
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(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated)

(BRERERS  2REMHIBARET)

VL.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

1.

Accounts receivable based on their entry dates
shown by ageing

Ageing AR

Within 1 year 1F AR

1-2 years 15824

2-3 years 2FE3F

3-4 years 3FE4F

4-5 years 4FEHF

Over 5 years 5F A E
Sub-total NEE

Less: Provision for bad debts W IBERAE

Total a5t

Note: The Group generally does not offer any official
contractual credit terms to its customers and will
closely monitor the settlement pattern of respective
customers. For certain individual customers with
long-term relationship with the Group and have
good credit history in the past, the Group may
allow them to settle the related receivable balances
within a discretionary period ranging from 30 days
to 360 days.

N IR

1 BERIRREHEARB P IRE

mE

As at

June 30,

2025
202556 A30H
(Unaudited)
(RIEER)

116,105,614.04
5,965,198.05

322,525.65
64,230.00
3,941,578.65
126,399,146.39
17,365,746.47

As at

December 31,
2024

202412 A31 H
(Audited)

(7 &=t

80,628,030.36
311,886.00
311,693.93
63,431.86
11,630.00
3,941,678.65
85,268,250.80
14,940,517.64

109,033,399.92

70,327,733.16

HEH AKEBEETERAR
FRECAEXANEED
R YWHEEREEPNE
ERA - HREAREA R
BERABEEELERIFMNE
AEP  REEA AFFLER
F#30R £360H A5 EHH
e R IR KGR ©
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(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated)

(BRERERS  2REMHIBARET)

VIl. PREPAYMENTS £  AFRE
Ageing of prepayments TN RIEZERR YT
As at June 30, 2025 As at December 31, 2024
2025568300 2024%12H31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(R¥EER) (f&=&5t)

Percentage Percentage

Amount (%) Amount (%)

Ageing BRER &% (%) x| EEA51(%)

Within 1 year 1EAR 31,737,512.29 94.40 17,943,953.99 89.58

1-2 years 1226 1,004,687.67 2.99 1,449,301.73 7.23

2-3 years 2E3F 429,687.00 1.28 278,737.51 1.39

Over 3 years 3FELE 445,837.74 1.33 361,459.16 1.80

Total a&t 33,617,724.70 100.00 20,033,452.39 100.00

VIII.OTHER RECEIVABLES I\~ H At FE R

As at As at

June 30, December 31,

2025 2024

202556 H30R 2024%12A31H

(Unaudited) (Audited)

ltem HE (RiEER) (f82&5T)
Interest receivable s FI B
Dividends receivable il

Other receivables H U FUA 6,694,043.25 1,907,952.60

Total &t 6,694,043.25 1,907,952.60
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VIIl. OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Other receivables

(1)  Disclosure by ageing

Ageing

Within 1 year

1-2 years

2-3 years

3-4 years

4-5 years

Over 5 years

Sub-total

Less: Provision for bad debts

Total

fRifk

K
15246
2E3F
3E4F
4E5E
5F F
NEF

W RERER

it

(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated)

(BREHRERS  SREMIRBARKT)

I\ R R (4])

H o FE W =R

(1) HEREHE

As at As at

June 30, December 31,
2025 2024
20256 A30H 2024%F12H31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(KiEE) (#&&st)
5,263,623.09 654,752.50
131,457.34 65,902.85
75,982.47 54,195.37
699,215.31 635,108.94
26,077.00 43,774.00
723,690.64 679,958.64
6,920,045.85 2,133,692.30
226,002.60 225,739.70
6,694,043.25 1,907,952.60
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(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated)

(BREFBRTERR SN
INVENTORIES h -8
Classification of inventories FEDE

As at June 30, 2025 (Unaudited)

SREBMIGRARKIT)

As at December 31, 2024 (Audited)

2025%6F 308 (RiEHI) 202412431 R (£ %3t)

Provision for Provision for

Book impairment of impairment of
balance inventories  Carrying value  Book balance inventories  Carrying value
Type 5 BERE FRERER EEfEE FERE  REKEER KHERE
Raw materials Rtet 36,223,820.40 36,223,820.40  33,792,936.10 33,792,936.10
Work in progress fED 25,622,478.65 25,622,478.65  22,181,302.80 22,181,302.80
Finished goods EfER  34,644,823.16 34,644,823.16  31,267,349.18 31,267,349.13
Total & 96,491,122.21 96,491,122.21  87,241,588.03 87,241,588.03

NON-CURRENT ASSETS DUE WITHIN ONE

T+ —FARIPHFERDEE

As at
December 31,
2024
(Audited)
20244
12H31H
($&FE5T)

107,974,139.89

YEAR

As at
June 30,
2025
(Unaudited)
2025%F
6A30H
[tem HE (kRi&EsT)

Certificates of deposit due —EREHIR
within one year REFE 52,595,875.17
Total at 52,595,875.17

107,974,139.89




LEPU ScienTech Medical Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
EOREBEMNE (L8) ROBRAA

Notes to the 2025 Interim Financial Statements

—ECHF¥FEMBHRRME

(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated)

(BRERERS  2REMHIBARET)

XIl. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - BREHENE
Investment properties at cost method EARAFTEEANRELEEHE
Buildings and
structures Total
Item EH B R REEY) Bt
1. Original carrying amount 1. RERE
(1) As at December 31, 2024 (Audited) (1) 2024512 A31H (&=&zT) 9,290,594.46  9,290,594.46
(2) Increase during this period Q) REBEMEE
— Purchase — B
(3) Decrease during this period Q) AER 2T
- Disposals -RE
(4) As at June 30, 2025 (Unaudited) (4) 2025%6 A30H
(RE&E:) 9,290,594.46  9,290,594.46
2. Accumulated depreciation and 2. BEHEMZRFEE
amortization
(1) As at December 31, 2024 (Audited) (1) 2024F 128318 (L&) 1,838,763.51 1,838,763.51
(2) Increase during this period Q) REBEMEE 110,325.84 110,325.84
— Provision made or amortization — FHRS 110,325.84 110,325.84
(3) Decrease during this period Q) RERS 2B
- Disposals -RE
(4) As at June 30, 2025 (Unaudited) (4) 20256 A30H
(Rig&Est) 1,049,089.35  1,949,089.35
3. Provision for impairment 3. RE%EHE
(1) As at December 31, 2024 (Audited) (1) 2024%12A31 8 (L&)
(2) Increase during this period @) REEMEE
— Provision made — &g
(3) Decrease during this period Q) AERSEE
- Disposals -RE
(4) As at June 30, 2025 (Unaudited) (4) 2025%6 A30H
(Rg&E:t)
4. Carrying value 4. REEE
(1) Net book value at June 30, 2025 (1) 202596 A30HREER
(Unaudited) (REEH) 7,341,505.11  7,341,505.11
(2) Net book value at December 31, 2024 (2) 2024F12A31 REEEEE
(Audited) (#e&st) 7,451,830.95  7,451,830.95
XIl. FIXED ASSETS += - BEEE
1. Fixed assets and disposal of fixed assets 1- EBEEEERECEESE
As at As at
June 30, December 31,
2025 2024
2025%6A30H 2024F12A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
ltem %R (RIEEH) (& 2t)
Fixed assets EEEE 113,323,533.49 116,567,671.35
Disposal of fixed assets EEEERE
Total & 113,323,533.49 116,567,671.35
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(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated)

(BREHRERS  SREMIRBARKT)

XIl. FIXED ASSETS (Continued)

2. Breakdown of fixed assets

Item R

1. Qriginal carrying amount 1. BERE

(1) As at December 31, (1) 2024%12A31A
2024 (Aucited) (EF:t)
() Increase during this 2 ~EENEE
period
- Purchase -EE
(3)  Decrease during this () AEESEE
period
- Disposal or retirement -REFHE
(&) Asat June 30, (4 2025%6730H
2025 (Unaudited) (RiEZ:)
2. Accumulated depreciaion 2. EitiFE
(1) As at December 31, (1) 2024%12A31A
2024 (Auciteq) (%)
() Increase during this 2 ~EENEE
period
- Provision made —ithe
(3)  Decrease during this () AHEIEE
period
- Disposal or retirement -REFHE
{4 Asat June 30, (4 2025%6730H
2025 (Unaudited) (AEE:)
3. Provision for impaiment 3. REEMR
(1) As at December 31, (1) 2024%12A31A
2024 (Auditeq) (&%)
() Increase during this @ ABENEE
period
- Provision made —§tie
(3)  Decrease during this @) AEEIEE
period
- Disposal or retirement -REFHE
(4 Asat June 30, (4 2025%6A30H
2025 (Unaudited) (AEE:)
4. Carrying value 4 BEEE
(1) Net book value at June (1) 202556A30B%H
30, 2025 (Unaudited) B (REF)
(2)  Net book value at (2) 2024%12A31A
December 31, 2024 FHEE (EF:)
(Audited)

Buildings
and structures

FEREEN

104,450,615.43

104,450,615.43

25,212,992.08

1,226,447.08
1,226,447.08

26,439,430.16

78,011,176.27

79,237,623.35

1= BERE ()

2 .
Machinery and
equipment

56,346,949.22

423,902.08
423,902.08

54,029.48

54,029.48

56,716,821.82

20,956,495.02

51,328.01
51,328.01

23,218,281.17

33,497,540.65

35,389,454.20

EEERBR
Electronic
Transportation  devices and
vehicle others
EFRER
BHIR i

2,333,970.77  4,961,442.22

211,828.42
211,828.42

4,614.53
4,614.53

2,333,970.77  5,168,656.11

1,793,785.23  3,561,063.96

113,884.56  223,490.36
113,884.56  223,490.36

4,383.80
4,383.80

1,907,639.79  3,780,170.52

426,330.98  1,388,485.59

540,215.64  1,400,378.26

168,091,977.64

635,730.50
635,730.50

58,644.01
58,644.01

168,669,064.13

51,524,306.29

3,876,936.16
3,876,936.16

55,711.81
55,711.81

55,345,530.64

113,323,533.49

116,567,671.35

Tl
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(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated)

(BRERERS  2REMHIBARET)

XIII.INTANGIBLE ASSETS += EELEE
Patent rights Others Total
Item ER Vi Hith CH
1. Original carrying amount 1. RERE
(1) As at December 31, 2024 (Audited) (1) 20245127318
(=3t 283,768,683.90 695,406.37  284,464,090.27
(2) Increase during this period Q) REENEE 467,630.99  2,310,477.72 2,778,108.71
- Purchase -BE 2,310,477.72 2,310,477.72
- Internal research & development — Wb 467,630.99 467,630.99
(3) Decrease during this period Q) AEHEE
- Disposal -RE
(4) As at June 30, 2025 (Unaudited) (4) 2025%6A30H
(K& E:) 284,236,314.89  3,005,884.09  287,242,198.98
2. Accumulated amortization 2. ZFtEE
(1) As at December 31, 2024 (Audited) (1) 20245127318
(=3t 33,537,219.36 290,327.48 33,827,546.84
2) Increase during this period Q) REENEE 12,306,055.55 62,283.91 12,368,339.46
- Provision made — it 12,306,055.55 62,283.91 12,368,339.46
(3) Decrease during this period Q) AEHI 2R
- Disposal -RE
(4) As at June 30, 2025 (Unaudited) (4) 2025468308
(ReEE:) 45,843,274.91 352,611.39 46,195,886.30
3. Provision for impairment 3. REEMH
(1) As at December 31, 2024 (Audited) (1) 2024412318
(=)
2) Increase during this period Q) AHENEHE
- Provision made — iR
(3) Decrease during this period Q) AHRL2HE
- Disposal -RE
(4) As at June 30, 2025 (Unaudited) (4) 2025%6H30H
(RIEEH)
4. Carrying value 4. REEE
(1) Net book value at June 30, 2025 (1) 2025%6A30RRE
(Unaudited) BB CREER) 238,393,030.98  2,653,272.70  241,046,312.68
(2) Net book value at December () 2024F12 7318
31, 2024 (Audited) BEE(EET) 250,231,464.54 405,078.89  250,636,543.43
Note: As at June 30, 2025, the intangible assets AR - R2025%F6 A30H - &
generated from the Group’s internal research and BEDRFEBNEFBNIFEIZKLD
development accounted for 81.87% of the balance of B EAENETEEATNLL M A

intangible assets. 81.87% °
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(BREHRERS  SREMIRBARKT)

XIV.GOODWILL 10 e
Increase Decrease
during this during this
As at period period As at
December 31, AHEm AR June 30,
2024 Avrising from 2025
(Audited) business (Unaudited)
2024%F  combinations Disposal 2025
Investee Companies or W B B AR 12A318 rREH 6A30R
matters forming goodwill WREEHZE (&%) TR H) RE (REEH)
Original carrying amount RERE
Shanghai Shape Memory LEFREEAS
Alloy Co., Ltd. MRBRAR 48,281,830.04 48,281,830.04
Sub-total et 48,281,830.04 48,281,830.04
Provision for impairment REER
Sub-total g
Book value REEE 48,281,830.04 48,281,830.04
XV. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS 15 HtikREBEE
As at June 30, 2025 (Unaudited) As at December 31, 2024 (Audited)
2025%6A 30 (KiE#it) 2004512731 R (%)
Provision of Provision of
Book balance impairment ~ Carrying value Book balance impairment ~ Carrying value
Item 2R FEisE HEER FERE KRS AL HEEME
Prepaid project paymentand BRI
equipment payment B 4,058,501.63 4,058,501.63 1,934,890.38 1,934,890.38
Certificate of deposit RERE 66,340,054.80 66,340,054.80  86,645,643.88 86,645,643.88
Others Hih 2,307,547.17 2,307,547.17

Total ait 72,706,103.60 72,706,103.60  88,580,534.26 88,580,534.26




LEPU ScienTech Medical Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
EZORERRE (£8) RHBRAR

Notes to the 2025 Interim Financial Statements

—ECHF¥FEMBHRRME

(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated)
(BRAFFRETIAIN - BB HR/ARBT)
+i8 FEMRRR

FEAT BRI ELABR B AR BRI 1 R

XVI.ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

The ageing analysis of accounts payable based on their
entry dates

As at As at

June 30, December 31,

2025 2024

2025%6H30H 202412 A31H

(Unaudited) (Audited)

ltem EH (REER) (&)
Within one year (inclusive) 1ELA 23,730,174.79 29,552,201.54
1-2 years 1-26F 1,512,206.78 1,070,796.19
2-3 years 2-3%F 12,885.02 623,173.34
Over 3 years 3EE 375,558.24 146,931.58
Total att 25,630,824.83 31,393,102.65

Note: The credit period granted by suppliers to the
Group ranged from 30 days to 120 days.

SEE HERRTAEENEES
NRB0KREI120K °

XVIl. CONTRACT LIABILITIES +t. cHE&E
As at As at
June 30, December 31,
2025 2024
20256 A30H 2024F12 311
(Unaudited) (Audited)
ltem JEH €3¢ Hl (&)
Within one year (inclusive) 1EHRA 15,218,576.27 13,430,997.04
1-2 years 126 1,637,534.15
Total &t 15,218,576.27 15,068,531.19
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XVil. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS PAYABLE

1. Breakdown of employee benefits payable

[tem

Short-term remuneration

Post-employment benefits -
defined contrioution plans

Termination benefits

QOther benefits due within one year

Total

bk

A
BB -
arm
B
AR

gt

2. Breakdown of short-term remuneration

ltem

(1) Salaries, bonuses, allowances and
subsidies

() Employee benefits

() Social insurance contribution

Including: Medical insurance contribution
Work-related injury insurance
contribution
Maternity insurance contribution

Housing provident fund

Labour union & employee education funds

&l =

=

Short-term paid absences
Short-term profit sharing schemes

=

Total

L

) TE #2-
il
0 BIRHE
B HeRRE
A BERRE
T5RKRE

tERRE
4 fELE:
() I&EEM
BI#ERE
) EEEFERE
n EHHEsZAHE

ait

I\ FE A B T 5

1 EABIZFMIIR

(BREHRERS  SREMIRBARKT)

As at As at

December 31, Increase Decrease June 30,

2024 during the during the 2025

2024%12A31R period period  2025%6R30R

(Audited) (Unaudited)

(&&:T) BN AR (RIEEH)

9,104,354.88 40,135,475.52 45,233 417.51 4,006,412.89

4,868,530.64 4,585,653.08 282,877.56

9,104,354.88 45,004,006.16 49,819,070.59 4,289,290.45

2. BEHHEMIT

As at As at

December 31, Increase Decrease June 30,

2024 during the during the 2025

2024124318 period period  2025%6A 308

(Audited) (Unaudited)

(&) AN EFD (REFH)

9,065,502.88 35,416,872.32 40,799,375.02 3,683,000.18
384,869.61 384,869.61

2,728,349.62 2,580,128.31 148,221.31

2,628,122.53 2,490,958.88 137,163.65

90,420.72 82,856.25 7,564.47

9,806.37 6,313.18 3,493.19

38,852.00 1,588,517.94 1,452,178.54 175,191.40
16,866.03 16,866.03

9,104,354.88 40,135,475.52 45,233,417 51 4,006,412.89

Tl
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(BRERERS  2REMHIBARET)

XVil. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS PAYABLE T\ EEARE T HEA ()
(Continued)

3. Breakdown of defined contribution plans 3 RERBFEISR
As at As at
December 31, June 30,
2024 Increase Decrease 2025
20245124318 during the duingthe  2025%6A30R
(Audited) period period (Unaudited)
ftem B (&&:T) BN &S (RIEEH)
Basic pension insurance EARERR 4,714,552.68 4,442,218.12 272,334.56
Unemployment insurance contribution KERKRE 153,977.96 143,434.96 10,543.00
Total ait 4,868,530.64 4,585,653.08 282,871.56

XIX.TAXES PAYABLE +h - EXRE

As at As at
June 30, December 31,
2025 2024
20256 A 30H 202412 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
ltem HEER (R¥EE) (l&&zT)
Value-added tax BER 13,588,480.02 2,777,830.05
Enterprise income tax ERTEN 17,802,000.36 15,075,675.25
Individual income tax EAFRGEH 500,407.86 452,392.11
City maintenance and construction tax W E R 716,936.23 144,465.36
Educational surcharge BB 397,497.38 86,300.76
Local educational surcharge WHHE BN 264,998.27 57,533.87
Stamp tax ENFERE 14,092.47 27,854.47
Others Het 176,016.00

Total &t 33,284,412.59 18,798,067.87
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XX. OTHER PAYABLES

[tem
Interest payable

Dividends payable
Other payables

Total

1. Dividends payable

[tem

Dividends for ordinary shares

Total

2.  Other payables

(1) Other payables by nature

ltem
Guarantee deposit

Current payments
Others

Total

HA
R
FEATAH
Hit MR

it

HH
el

ait

RES
ERR
A

(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated)

(BREHRERS  SREMIRBARKT)

T HtEMRR
As at As at
June 30, December 31,
2025 2024
2025%6H30H 202412 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (#&&st)
214,984,998.14
8,219,073.48 7,668,902.54
223,204,071.62 7,668,902.54
1 ERRFR
As at As at
June 30, December 31,
2025 2024
20256 A30H 2024F12 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
€3¢ Hl (f&&5T)
214,984,998.14
214,984,998.14
2 HiEARE
(1)  EEMEEZ)T
As at As at
June 30, December 31,
2025 2024
2025%6H30H 202412 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEE) (g=)
649,800.27 469,800.27
3,543,736.29 5,410,768.28
4,025,536.92 1,788,333.99
8,219,073.48 7,668,902.54
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(BRERERS  2REMHIBARET)

XXI.SHARE CAPITAL - BE
Increase (+) or decrease (-) during the period
ABEDE (A
As at As at
December 31, June 30,
2024 Issuance of Bonus  Conversion 2025
202412318 new shares issuance ~ from reserve Others  Sub-total  2025%6F 30
(Audited) (Unaudited)
Item R (=)  BER ER - DESER Eft e (K#EErH)
Total number  BRIR&H
of shares 346,749,997.00 346,749,997.00
XXIl. CAPITAL RESERVE Sty & XN

As at As at
December 31, Increase Decrease June 30,
2024 during the during the 2025
2024F12 /318 period perod  2025%6B30H
(Audited) (Unaudited)
Item 2 (&%) AEEM RS (KHEER)
Capital premium (shares premium) BRGE (RARE) 1,615,010,764.59 1,615,010,764.59
Other capital reserve EEARNE -283,477,399.95 9,095,208.72 -274,382,191.23
Total At 1,331,533,364.64 9,095,208.72 1,340,628,573.36
Note: The change in other capital reserve during the A NEHEMERRAENEEH R

period resulted from the implementation of equity-settled EELAE = & B RGO TS o

share-based payment.




Interim Report 2025
—E2-_FHRK

Notes to the 2025 Interim Financial Statements

XXIlil. OPERATING INCOME AND OPERATING

—ECAF¥FEMBHRRME

(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated)

(BREHRERS  SREMIRBARKT)

SHEERBANMERESF

COST
1. Breakdown of operating income and operating 1. BEEWANMEERRER
cost
Six months ended June 30,
#X6A30ALLAMEA
2025 2024
2025% 2024%
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(KiEEt) (REE:T)
Revenue Cost Revenue Cost
Item HE A B WA A
Principal business FREH 329,626,352.46 45,247,815.51  248,790,984.67 22,209,623.20
Other businesses i 78,986.32 110,325.84 309,163.98 220,651.62
Total &4 329,705,338.78 45,358,141.35  249,100,148.65 22,430,274.82
2. Information on the breakdown of operating 2 -

income and operating cost

ltem

Classification by product:

Congenital heart disease
occluder products

Pathway products

Patent foramen ovale and
left atrial appendage
occluder products

Valve products

Others

Total

%A

BERANE
RXREDRRIERER
BREER
SEAARER
ELEHERER

HEEmR
Eftr

&

BRI - EEREINDRE
g

B

Six months ended June 30,

HE6A0ALNERA
2025 2024
20255 20245

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

(REFH) (REH)
Operation Operating Operation Operating
income cost income cost
BRBA BREF BEWA BENA
160,628,028.37 10,325,081.79  128,570,233.84 7,728,049.14
47,192,209.59 14,841,623.70 40,346,197.08 11,368,559.76
81,656,574.20 5,982,853.14 79,763,191.28 3,090,256.46

40,125,415.38 14,090,109.88

103,111.24 118,472.83 420,526.45 243,409.46
329,705,338.78 45,358,141.35  249,100,148.65 22,430,274.82
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(BRERERS  2REMHIBARET)

XXIV. SELLING EXPENSE

[tem

Labor costs

Business entertainment expense
Traveling expense

Market fee

Exhibition fee

Business promotion fee
Share-based payment
Depreciation expense

Office expense

Others

Total

XXV. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE

[tem

Labor costs

Depreciation expense

Consult service fee

Traveling expense

Office expense

Property rental fee

Business entertainment expense
Auditor’s remuneration

Water, electricity and steam expense

Share-based payment
Others

Total

JHH

ATER
RGREGE
ERXBE
mHE
2RE
XHEBE
Btn A
wER
Hfth

a8t

BH

ATEMH
HER
AR E
ERRXBE
/N =
MEFHE
EBHREE
1% %5 B 7 B
KB EE
B A+
Hith

&t

—tH. SHERA
Six months ended June 30,
B E6H30HILRMEAR

2025 2024
20255 20244F
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
€33 19 (RfgzEaT)
23,314,880.11 17,681,764.76
4,690,388.15 3,021,251.77
5,200,281.65 2,788,415.45
4,694,825.71 2,036,897.41
2,698,438.36 1,994,560.13
1,374,109.57 1,5685,467.12
872,017.68 1,113,569.60
98,411.70 18,721.23
78,821.66 20,636.43
228,726.85 1,224,586.37

43,250,901.44

31,485,870.27

—ti. EEHA
Six months ended June 30,
BE6A30ALLKER

2025 2024
20254 20244
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(RiEEF) (REEEET)
5,897,315.53 6,291,240.85
1,018,444.59 849,801.00
1,779,445.34 2,785,853.41
300,361.22 363,740.64
589,283.12 338,155.74
595,037.75 379,223.20
100,462.41 106,608.03
330,188.68 330,188.68
104,130.32 98,965.76
3,871,065.00 4,943,363.50
19,474.61 1,926,394.71
14,605,208.57 18,413,535.52




Interim Report 2025
—E2-_FHRK

Notes to the 2025 Interim Financial Statements

—ECAF¥FEMBHRRME

(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated)

(BREHRERS  SREMIRBARKT)

[tem

Materials, power and manufacturing
inspection fees

Labor costs

Depreciation and amortization expense

Share-based payment

Design and clinical trial fee

Outsourced research and
development expenses

Others

Total

XXVILFINANCIAL EXPENSE

[tem

Interest expenses

Including: Interest expenses
for lease liabilities

Less: Interest income

Net exchange gains or losses

Handling charges

Total

XXVI. RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT EXPENSE

HH

REEIRIDSE
RERBE
ATER
nEHKEE
Bt = 4

Rt REAHRE
EREINERTRE B

Hity

8t

HH

MEEM

Hep - HERE
FMEER

B MERA

[ 5 R

FEEXH

&t

—tX HAERE
Six months ended June 30,
EE6HA30HIENER
2025 2024
20255 20244
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
€33 19 (RfgzEaT)
10,218,545.42 8,837,241.90
4,349,383.29 5,093,036.07
2,932,783.97 2,194,634.32
2,744,758.76 1,956,618.93
1,513,825.73 465,939.65
23,631.61 273,226.94
3,571,908.76 2,851,205.60
25,354,837.54 21,671,903.41
~tt - BBER
Six months ended June 30
B E6H30HILRMEAR

2025 2024
20255 20244
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(RiEE) (Rfezat)
74,169.07 85,408.45
74,169.07 85,408.45
9,500,904.56 13,278,075.95
-503,499.09 -982,533.23
57,914.38 50,052.56
-9,872,320.20 -14,125,148.17
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(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated)

(BRBFFRERASN

SREMH/ARET)

XXVI.LLOSS ON IMPAIRMENT OF CREDIT

Iltem

Loss on bad debts of
accounts receivable

Loss on bad debts of
other receivables

Total

XXIX. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

[tem

Current income tax expenses
Deferred income tax expenses

Total

EHH

FE W BRI AR IR K
HAth FEU IR AR B K

Ly

HH

EHHERER
ELEHMEHER

&t

tANERRERS%
Six months ended June 30,
#X¥6HA30HLIENEAR
2025 2024
20255F 20244
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(kiEERT) (REEFER)
2,425,228.83 7,080,904.28
262.90 46,020.12
2,425,491.73 7,126,924.40
“thFRBRER
Six months ended June 30,
B E6H30AILRMEAR
2025 2024
20255 2024%F
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEH) (RfezEat)
27,899,493.74 24,157,890.78
844,040.12 -249,146.30
28,743,533.86 23,908,744.48
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XXX.EARNINGS PER SHARE
1. Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing
the combined net profit attributable to shareholders
of ordinary shares of the parent company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares of the
Company in issue:

tem JEH

Combined net profit attributable to EENSYNTIESE )

shareholders of ordinary shares BHENE
of the parent company

Weighted average number of ordinary KARBTENEBBRM
shares of the Company in issue MEFHE

Basic earnings per share ERgRiE

Including: Basic earnings per share He : BELEEAGREE
from continuing operations
Basic earnings per share from

discontinued operations

RIERERABRRE

2. Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share is the same as basic
earnings per share as there were no potential
dilutive ordinary shares outstanding during the six
months ended June 30, 2025 and 2024.

(B oRFERASN

=t JRilS

1

EXgRWKE

SREBMIGRARKIT)

ERFGRKBENFENE AT
BRI IR A BHFE R BERR A
ARRBBRITHEINE B H IOHE

FHBGEE -

Six months ended June 30,

#E6A30A L EA
2025 2024
20254 20245
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REFH) (REZE:)
182,024,291.38 140,228,466.38
346,749,997.00 346,749,997.00
0.5249 0.4044
0.5249 0.4044

2. WEsSRW=

RN EE2025%F K 202446 A

30H IE/NfE A W | B ED 21T
BELEik  ALBESRK
s EE ARG SR o




LEPU ScienTech Medical Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.

EORBRENE (L8) ROBRAA

Notes to the 2025 Interim Financial Statements

FFFFEPBRRME

—ﬁ—

—_——

(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated)

(BRRr 7R LA

Sh - BB /ARETT)

XXXI. RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

EXP

1)

ENDITURE

Research and development expenditure

ltem

Labor costs
Materials, power and
manufacturing inspection fees
Depreciation and amortization expense
Design and clinical trial fee
Outsourced research and
development expenses
Share-based payment
Others

Total

Including: Expensed research and
development expenditure
Capitalized research and
development expenditure

A H

ATER
RSN LREERRE

FEAHE
Rt RERARE
RENBHEER

Rty <
At

ait

Hep: BREHEH

B

St R
(—) Wkl
Six months ended June 30,
#F6A30HILEA

2025 2024
20255 20245
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(KRiEEE) (REEFERT)
9,021,922.25 10,577,855.43
15,085,344.14 13,172,375.09
3,546,565.22 3,880,276.97
6,485,110.61 18,948,303.24
23,631.61 3,376,331.45
4,399,642.09 5,657,680.14
3,571,908.76 2,851,205.60
42,134,124.68 58,364,027.92
25,354,837.54 21,671,903.41

16,779,287.14

36,692,124.51
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(BREHRERS  SREMIRBARKT)

XXX.. RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT St- AR ()
EXPENDITURE (Continued)
(2) Development expenses (=) Mg
Increase Decrease
during the during the
period period
REENEE AER 2%
As at Internal Recognized As at
December 31, development as intangible June 30,
2024 expenditure assets 2025
ltem A 2024%12A318 RBEERL  BRREVEE  2025%6A30H
(Budited) (Unaudited)
(#551) (KHEER)
Transapical mitral valve clip system DA~ AERZSG 22,806,740.29 4,018,668.77 26,825,409.06
Transapical mitral valve repair Z“‘ TLRZRBEEZS
system 9,580,076.74 48,224.10 9,628,300.84
Degradable (PDO poly (p-dioxane) A& (PDOZ — &3
occlusion device B HEE 1,781,619.48 61,769.69 1,843,389.17
Degradable aortic occluder AREFHRER 823,909.16 823,909.16
Degradable left atrial appendage  ATREEADE R
occluder 53,585,448.30 7,147,543.03 60,732,991.33
Biodegradable atrial septal defect  EHRIBEERBREN#R
occluder 467,630.99 467,630.99
Biodegradable patent foramen YR RRPELRTHIES
ovale occluder 6,509,953.44 134,646.73 6,644,600.17
Bioabsorbable patent foramen YA RSP B R FEER
ovale occluder 7,512,590.29 253,249.97 7,765,840.26
Unobstructed flow membrane BRETEIER
occluder 12,525,467.17 172,474,717 12,697,941.94
Atrial shunt instrument kit LEDREMES 6,663,934.91 99,850.00 6,763,784.92
Oxide fim single rivet patent SLESINEARA AR
foramen ovale occluder 15,154,452.34 2,006,387.71 17,160,840.06
Pre-embedded suture vascular ~ EEBEANEHARZS
closure system 940,713.50 1,544,932.21 2,485,645.71
Sub-total INet 137,060,996.47 16,779,287.14 467,630.99  153,372,652.62

Less: provision for impairment B REER

Total &it 137,060,996.47 16,779,287.14 467,630.99  153,372,652.62
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(BRERERS  2REMHIBARET)

XXXI. CHANGES IN SCOPE OF CONSOLIDATION S eHEEmEE
The scope of consolidation for this period has not REE O HEREEZE o
changed.
XXXILEQUITY IN OTHER ENTITIES S ERMERPHER
(1)  Equity in subsidiaries (=) EFDFEHRHER
Composition of enterprise group IEREEEFREK
Proportion of
Main shareholding (%)
operation  Registration FIRELI(%) Acquisition
location ~location Nature of business Direct ~ Indirect method
Name of subsidlary FRR4HE TEELH i R i3 BEA
Shanghai Shape Memory Alloy Co., Ltd. ~ EAF#tEA®  Shanghai  Shanghai  Manufacturing industry — 100.00 Acquisition
WHERAT LA b % not under
common
control
SR
Lepu ScienTech (Beijing) Medical 2E0E(R)  Being  Beling Technology 100.00 Establishment
Technology Co., Ltd. EENRARLE IR IR development Bl
RliEg
Lepu ScienTech (Shenzhen) Medical 2E0Z(RI)  Shenzhen  Shenzhen  Trading 100.00 Establishment

g
A
Technology o, Lid BEREAROT B B B3 4o
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XXXIV.DISCLOSURE OF FAIR VALUE

Inputs used in the fair value measurement are divided
into three levels:

Level 1 inputs refer to quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities available
on the measurement date.

Level 2 inputs refer to inputs that are directly or indirectly
observable for the asset or liability other than Level 1
inputs.

Level 3 inputs refer to unobservable inputs of the relevant
assets or liabilities.

The level of the measurement result of fair value shall
subject to the lowest level which the input that is of
great significance to the entire measurement of fair value
belongs to.

(1) Fair value of assets and liabilities measured at
fair value at the end of this period

As at June 30, 2025, there are no financial assets
or liabilities measured at fair value.

XXXV. RELATED PARTIES AND

RELATED-PARTIES TRANSACTION

(1) The situation of the Company’s parent company

Parent Registration

company name BAAAR location &M Nature of business

Lepu Medcal £L(LR)BE  Beiing 7 Medical equipment
Technology ERHER production and
(Bsiing) Co., Ltd. A sales

The ultimate controlling party of the Company is
Mr. Pu Zhongjie.

(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated)

(BREHRERS  SREMIRBARKT)

I

LRFREHHE
REEFEMERNEAES D

AR -

3

2 3
=

F-EBRBABRETERENR
BHHEREEXABEERMS L

F_BRBABRKRE-EBREA
BEIMBAEEABEERAEEA
BIRMBAE -

F_BRBAEBRHEREENEE
MR BRBAE -

N

ARAEEFELRMBNEXR A
HAREBEAERBEMSARER
EENBAEMBHNREEBIORE °

(=) MR nEBEEAENEENER
R A AEE

N2025%F6 A308 - 14
AREBEFENEBREERA

&

L RB L RABRE S

(=) ZLFNEFLFHER

BRENLIER

Parent
Registered ~ company’s Voting
capital  shareholding rights of
(ten thousand inthe the parent
yuan) ~ Company (%)  company (%)
SFRY
S/NGE| ARAH
AMmER ARAH  RMERH
(B)  #RLh%) (%)
188,061.0488 79.94 79.94

AR BREIEGTT BB E -
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(BRERERS  2REMHIBARET)

XXXV. RELATED PARTIES AND ST R A REABES ()
RELATED-PARTIES TRANSACTION
(Continued)

(2) The situation of the Company’s subsidiary (=) RAFRMFARER
companies
Please refer to Note “XXXIIl. Equity in other entities” AR R)F R RIAIE R FE R AN
for details of the subsidiaries of the Company. HI=+= HHMEEHH

2] o

(8) The situation of other related parties (=) HttEB 5 1ER
Name of other related parties Relationship with the Company
HMEABS BB H fth BBk 5 B A 2 F] A9 R (%
Hefei High-tech Cardiovascular Hospital Same ultimate controlling party
& SO ME S 2B A — S A AEHI 5
Beijing Lepu Digital Health Technology Co., Ltd. Same ultimate controlling party
EREERFRERMRARAA A — B AR EHI T
Lepu (Beijing) Medical Equipment Co., Ltd. Same ultimate controlling party
fE () BREBAR AR A — R AR IEHIT7
Anhui Magete Medical Technology Co., Ltd. Same ultimate controlling party
ZHEBRSERERRARAA A — S A AEHI 75
Anhui High tech Cardiovascular and Same ultimate controlling party

Cerebrovascular Hospital Management Co., Ltd.

ZHEMOKIDE R ERBRAF A — S A AEHI 75
Lepu Ruikang (Beijing) Technology Co., Ltd. Same ultimate controlling party
LEEFR (AR REBERAT A — S A AEHI 75
Hefei Lexin Medical Equipment Co., Ltd. Same ultimate controlling party
BRLELBEFMARRAA] A — S A AEHI 75
Jiangsu Shangzhi Medical Equipment Co., Ltd. Same ultimate controlling party
L FEBESMARNAA] A — S A AEHI 75
Shenzhen Kerikang Industrial Co., Ltd. Same ultimate controlling party

YR IRFEEXAR A Bl — & A $E Il 77
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(BREHRERS  SREMIRBARKT)

XXXV. RELATED PARTIES AND ST RB A REABR S ()

RELATED-PARTIES TRANSACTION
(Continued)

@)

The situation of other related parties
(Continued)

Name of other related parties

HtmRBL &8

Sichuan Xingtai Pule Medical Technology Co., Ltd.

M)l R EERER R AR AR

Lepu International Holdings (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.

LB ORI BR AR

LepuCare (India) Vascular Solutions Pvt. Ltd.

LepuCare (India) Vascular Solutions Pvt. Ltd.

Beijing Sida Medical Devices Company Limited

IRBEBAREARAA

Beijing Target Medical Technologies Co., Ltd.

IERRMFHBEHRARA A

Shanghai Lepu CloudMed Co., Ltd.

FERERRNMERNAERRAR]

Ningbo Jiadu Enterprise Management Partnership
(Limited Partnership)

ERFRECXERAR X (ARE®)

Ningbo Jiacheng Enterprise Management Partnership
(Limited Partnership)

EREECXERABLE (ARE®)

Tianjin Weiman Biomaterials Co., Ltd

RETRH2EMMEER AR

(=) EApaEGER (&)

Relationship with the Company

HERBE 5 RE QR E

Same ultimate controlling party
A — & AAEHI 75
Same ultimate controlling party
A — & AAEHI 75
Same ultimate controlling party
A — & AAEHI 75
Same ultimate controlling party
A — & AAEHI 75
Same ultimate controlling party
A — & AAEHI 75
Same ultimate controlling party
A — & AAEHI 75
Same ultimate controlling party

B — AT HI
Same ultimate controlling party

Rl — SARAE I 7

Its parent company holds shares

FATLRHAT
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(BREFIRERRSN - @B AARET)
XXXV. RELATED PARTIES AND I RS R AR S (#])
RELATED-PARTIES TRANSACTION
(Continued)
(4) The situation of related-party transactions (W) BEHXZER
1. Related-party transactions in relation to 1 BHEEmD - ERNES
purchase and sale of goods and provision and LY 0l L

receipt of services

Purchase of goods/receipt of services REmR,BIXLBE
nE
Six months ended June 30,
#E6A3081LER
2025 2024
Content of 20255 2004
related-party (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
Related party Bn transaction B ZNA (ReEFt) (REZ:)
Lepu Medical Technology (Befing) Co., & (3LR) BRARRIAE Purchase of goods  FHEEY
Ltd, RAR 12,144,958.67 15,127.17
Beijing Lepu Precision Medical IRELRERENRAR  Puchaseof goods  HEEY
Technology Co., Ltd. 2] 524.78 11,153.91
Hefel High-tech Cardiovascular Hospital ~ AR BH L ME7ER Receipt of senvices R4 4,037,844.14  4,805,963.08
Beijing Lepu Digital Health Technology ~ AREEETRFMHAR  Receiptof senvices  EXSHH
Co., Ltd, ] 283,018.87 283,018.87
Lepu (Beiing) Medical Equipment Co., 2% (%) BEEEERD  Recelptof senvices  &X4H
Ltd, G 253,893.28
Anhui Magete Medical Technology Co., ~ ZEEBRREERHAER  Receipt of senvices %X 4%
Ltd. ] 112,654.86 982,723.33
Anhui High tech Cardiovascular RESHLKNEERER  Receptof senvices  EX4H
and Cerebrovascular Hospital BRAR
Management Co., Ltd. 110,416.43
Lepu Ruikang (Bejjng) Technology Co., ~ £EZ& (L7 BHBRD  Receipt of senvices &R 4%
Ltd. G 62,486.00 22,840.00
Hefei Lexin Medical Equipment Co., Ltd. ~ AZLEERHARDE  Receiptof senvices  &X4H 56,327.44
Beijing Lepu Precision Medical JRELREEBENHAR  Receiptof senvices BXEH
Technology Co., Ltd. G| 14,550.71 2,110,009.11
Jiangsu Shangzhi Medical Equipment THZEEENERDA  Recelptof senices  EXAH
Co., Ltd. 14,336.28
Lepu Medical Technology (Bejjng) Co.,  £E (3t7) BERMIRNE Receipt of senices  &XHH
Ld. R 3,508,406.92
Beijing Lejian Dongwai Outpatient HFLERNEIPERD  Recelpt of senvices  EREH
Department Co., Ltd. ] 59,587.00
Shenzhen Kerikang Industriel Co., Lid.  RIIMARREXERAT  Reoeint of senvices  HX 47 19,040.00
Sichuan Xingtai Pule Medical M| EFELERMEER  Recelpt of senices  EXEH
Technology Co., Ltd. ] 1,886.79




Interim Report 2025
—Z-AHH

Notes to the 2025 Interim Financial Statements

—ECAF¥FEMBHRRME

(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated)

(BREHRERS  SREMIRBARKT)

XXXV. RELATED PARTIES AND ST RAB A REABES ()

RELATED-PARTIES TRANSACTION

(Continued)

(4) The situation of related-party transactions (M) BB 1ER (&)
(Continued)
1. Related-party transactions in relation to 1 BHEED - ERAES

purchase and sale of goods and provision and
receipt of services (Continued)

HEmm S RHSBE

Sale of goods/provision of services

IS
Six months ended June 30,
HE6A30HLAEA
2025 2024
Content of 2255 20045
related-party (Unaudited) {Unaudited)
Related party B fransaction BER5NA (REEH) (REZ:)
Lepu International Holdings SEARER(A)E  Sale of goods HEAm
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. BAw 2,472,250.26 718,969.95
LepuCare (Indlia) Vascular Solutions ~ LepuCare (Indlia) Sale of goods HEEm
Put. Ld. Vascular Solutions
Pvt. Ltd. 1,197,189.61 614,004.00
Hefel Lexin Medical Equipment SELLERSHAER  Sale of goods HERm
Co., Ltd. N 595,805.33
Xi'an Qinming Medical Instrument ~~ EZRZBELEZAR  Sale of goods HEAm
Co., Ltd, N 1,687,240.16
Anhui Magete Medical Technology ~ ZHAEREEERE  Sale of goods HEAm
Co,, Ltd. ERAR 1,204,247.78
2. The situation of related leases B HE G X
The Group is as lessor: AEBEERDET -
For the six months ended June 30,
#F6A30ALNERA
2025 2024
2025% 2024F
Rental income Rental income
HERA HEWA
Type of (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
Name of lessee EUES:] leased assets HEEERSE (REFH) (REEH)
Shanghai Lepu CloudMed ~ FEZEZRRERL Property leasng ~ EEREY
Co., Ltd. ARAR 78,986.32 300,163.98




Notes to the 2025 Interim Financial Statements

LEPU ScienTech Medical Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.

KELFRBERENEK (L8) ROBRAA

FFFFEPBRRME

(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated)

(BRERERS  2REMHIBARET)

—_ZF-

G6'219'96% '520'98

FREMY  mEEN
1 HEER
I
$1958 pawnsse
oo sag
UBu U 82| U0
osealou|  asuadxe
Is0se|

95'/60'68¢
SHENY  BEY HESH  FHRED
EHER  GER (0Bt
ER 5989
HEER  NEBEHE
Yi¥ EEE8
pied [euay  Sallie] BWesll  Sjosse
95e8) 10 payidwis — asn-jo
1UBLIBINSBAW  Japun S18sse -yl ul
Ul NEA-MO[J0 9SB3JOu|
PPNV 10U SBSEs| pUB
SlUawfed $8588| Wis)
9588 -Jious Jo
9|0eLIRA $1500 [eJUeY
(2%
(peypneun)
B
7600
HBATHOCHIER
‘0¢ dunp papus Sypuow Xig
C HEEE S BB
(&) el ZEH#E - c
() WE Ex g (hd)

(B¥) & 2 ShBe W oL JhBE T4=

LT'608'6¢

REEN
HeEe
i3]

pauinsse
SolIfIqel
35B9| U0
asuadxa
1s0I8u]

029t

LTehver

SHENE

pred
[ejuay

(#ER¥)

(paypneun)

$5000
520¢

By
¥BEL
WERDY
FBY#¥

Samgel
a5e9] J0

juswiainsesw

syl
papnjoul Jou
sjuawhed
ased|
3|qeLep

SaINjoNIS
bEg pue
ygL  sbuping
LZ6HE)
SaIMINAS
bEE pue
yE5L  sbuping
Em m@ SJosse
THEEE ZEER  pose
FHENS Josdi]
i34
WEENE
JUEITIEEY)]
palyduis
Japun
S}asse anjea
-Mo| JO
$9589] pue
$95B9| Wia)
-Hoys Jo

§1509 [eJuay

oA
k]
WREg

(87) &%

oA S

EEE

I

HELER

il

“0) (Bulleg)

ABojouyoa|
[eoIpajy nda
poywn

Auedwor
$9018(Q
[EOIpB

epis Bufleg

1036 0 BueN

:99S8S9| se S| dnoJr) ay |

(ponunuon) seses| pajejal Jo uoneniis ay | Z

(panunuo9) suonoesuely Aued-palejas Jo uonenus ayl

(PenunRuUo)) NOILOVSNVYHL
S311HVd-A3LV13H ANV S3ILHVYd @3Lv13d 'AXXX




Interim Report 2025
—Z-AHH

Notes to the 2025 Interim Financial Statements

XXXV. RELATED PARTIES AND
RELATED-PARTIES TRANSACTION

—ECAF¥FEMBHRRME

(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated)

(BREHRERS  SREMIRBARKT)

L GBS R BB 5 (48)

(Continued)
(4) The situation of related-party transactions (M) BEHXZER (&)
(Continued)
3. Compensation of key management personnel 3 [HREBASFH
Six months ended June 30,
#E6A30ALLKMEA
2025 2024
2025 20245
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
ltem BE (RIEEH) (REEREE)
Compensation of key HREEABEHH
management personnel 5,675,050.19 6,894,429.11
(5) Receivables from and payable to related parties (B) BBLERESSEREHEER
1. Receivables 1 JEHIEA

As at June 30, 2025 As at December 31, 2024

2025%6830R 2024F12A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(KEEH) (%)
Book  Provision for Book  Provision for
Item balance  bad debts balance had debts
B8 Related party i) FERE BEER FERE SEER
Accounts
recelvable
Anfui Magete Medical Technology Co., Ltd. — RE#EREERREARLA  1,652,90000 1,652,900.00
LepuCare (India) Vascular Solutions Pvt. Ltd.  LepuCare (Indla) Vascular 1,569,027.97 371,838.36
SoluionstTLd
Hefel Lexin Medical Equipment Co,, Ltd. aRELERERERLA 1,109,380.00 436,120.00
Lepu International Holoings (Shenzhen) Co.,  #EREIR (R BRAZ  1,046,30240 1436,753.95
Ltd.
Prepayments
BRE
Anfui High tech Cardiovascular and REERLENEEREE 1,259,574.68
Cerebrovascular Hospital Management BRAT
Co., Ltd.
Hefel High-tech Cardlovascular Hospita AEEHLERER 1,034,492.27 1,063593.50

Beiing Sida Medical Devices Company Limted {1752

EREEERAT 26,000.00

Befing Lepu Digtal Health Technology Co., I R&EHZRENAARAR 16,981.13

Ltd.

Jiangsu Shangzhi Medical Equipment Co., Ltd. {T4 HBEEEHARAT 8,100.00
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(BRERERS  2REMHIBARET)

XXXV. RELATED PARTIES AND SHE RS R BB 5 (1)
RELATED-PARTIES TRANSACTION
(Continued)
(5) Receivables from and payable to related parties (f) BHLEWENEREEE
(Continued) B (&)
2. Payable 2. [EfEH
As at As at

June 30,2025 December 31, 2024
202566A308  2024E12A31H

(Unaudited) (Audited)
(FEEH) (&%)
Item Book balance Book balance
BB Related party i BEsE FHHE
Accounts payable
JEfIHEE
Lepu Medical Technology (Befing) Co., Ltd. 2% (3t7) EEBRKHERA
G 12,142,164.46 315,127.17
Beiing Lepu Precision Medical Technology Co.,  Jt REEBHEERRERAT
Ltd. 4,657.09 20,245.59
Tianjin Weiman Biomaterials Co., Ltd REMHEENHER A 4,247.19 64,424.78
Other payables
AR
Lepu Medical Technology (Beifing) Co., Ltd. &% (1tR) EBZHRHARA
G 171,864,000.00
Ningbo Jiadu Enterprise Management EREEORERANLE(R
Partnership (Limited Partnership) k&%) 5,664,842.04
Ningbo Jiacheng Enterprise Management ERRIORERANLE(R
Partnership (Limited Partnership) k&%) 3,472,000.00
Beijing Target Medical Technologies Co., Ltd. St REMABHABRAA 1,736,000.00
Contract liabilities
ARBE
Hefei High-tech Cardiovascular Hospital AREFLNERER 25,753.30
Other current liabilities
ArBEE
Hefei High-tech Cardiovascular Hospital ARSFLNERER 3,347.93

Lease liabilities
HEER
Lepu Medical Technology (Beiing) Co., Ltd. SE(R) BESHROARA
A 1,146,614.66 1,513,992.96

peall]

Non-current liabilities due within one year
—ERIEBNERBERE
Lepu Medical Technology (Beiing) Co., Ltd. L (R) BESHROARA
f 727,583.74 713,378.07

i
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(BREHRERS  SREMIRBARKT)

XXXV. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT StnoB iRt
(1) Overall situation of share-based payment (—) R FHERER
Share options or other equity instruments issued B SR B 1T 12 SN AR £ HA 4 3k
and outstanding at the end of the period Hfth#Em T A
Stock options issued and outstanding Other equity instruments issued and
at the end of the period outstanding at the end of the period
BREAEMIRR SR BRETEMIEERTA
Remaining duration Remaining duration
Vested Range of exercise prices of the contract ~ Range of exercise prices of the contract
RTHR {TEERNEE AFRAAR {TEERNEE ARFRHR
Sales staff RMB3.48/share 4 months
BEAR 34870/ & 43R
Managerial staff RMB3.48/share 4 months
EBAR 3487/ 48R
Research and development staff RMB3.48/share 4 months
HEAR 3481/ & 48R
Manufacturing staff RMB3.48/share 4 months
EEAR 3481/ & 48R
(2) The conditions of Equity-settled share-based (Z) LUEREENRAZNER
payment
Fair value of shares as
The fair value recognition method of the equity instruments at grant date determined by appraisal
KTRRRIAAABENETAE BAERENRHAAEE
Basis for determining the number of feasible equity instruments Best estimate of quantities at the
balance sheet date
A{TEER TAHENETEKE BEABRANREMTHE
The reason of significant variance between current and previous period estimate None
FHfEGHE LS B EAZRNRA &

The accumulated amount of equity-settled share-based payment included in capital reserve
NEREENRN M ABAREN 2 €8 108,709,399.55
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(BRERERS  2REMHIBARET)

XXXV. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT (Continued) SRR AT (48)
(8) Share-based payment expense (=) B ER
Six months ended June 30,
BE6A0ALAEA
2025 2024
20255 20245
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(RIEEH) (RE%:)
Equity-settled  Cash-settled Equity-settled ~ Cash-settled
share-hased  share-based share-based ~ share-based
payment payment Total payment payment Total
DEGEHEYN  UREREM NEREER  RSEER
Vested RT4% it kit &it t&f & f Bt
Sales staff HEAR 872,017.68 872,017.68  1,113,569.60 1,113,569.60
Managerial staff EEAE 3,320,112.96 3,320,112.96  4,300,473.98 4,300,473.98
Research and EIN
development staff 4,399,642.09 4,399,642.09  5,557,680.14 5,557,680.14
Manufacturing staff EEAE 503,435.99 503,435.99 642,889.52 642,889.52

Total &t 9,095,208.72 9,05,08.72  11,614,613.24 11,614,613.24
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(BREHRERS  SREMIRBARKT)

XXXVL.SEGMENT INFORMATION ttBEER

1.

Basis for determining reporting segments and
accounting policies

The Group’s business activities, where independent
financial information is available, are regularly
reviewed and evaluated by key operating decision
makers. The principal operating decision makers
(responsible for allocating resources to operating
segments and evaluating their performance) has
been identified as an executive director of the
Company who makes strategic decisions. The
major operating decision makers evaluate the
performance of reportable operating segments
based primarily on segment revenue, sale costs,
and research and development expenses for
each reportable operating segment. As a result,
segment results will show revenue, cost of sales,
research and development expenses and gross
profit for each reportable operating segment, which
is consistent with the performance assessment of
major operating decision makers.

The Group’s reporting segments are as follows:

The occluder business is mainly operated by
Shanghai Shape Memory Alloy Co., Ltd., which is
engaged in the development and sales of occluder
series for interventional treatment of defective
congenital heart disease.

The heart valve business is mainly operated by
the Beijing branch of Shanghai Shape Memory
Alloy Co., Ltd., which is currently engaged in the
research and development business of heart valve
medical devices.

Separate information on segment assets and
segment liabilities is not provided to the major
operating decision makers as they are not used by
the major operating decision makers to allocate the
resources of the operating segment or evaluate its
performance.

HESWHREMBES
BUR

AEBEM RS (A RREABT
MIEER) AT ERERRE
EHERN LG o T2RE
RRE (ABEDELENRLZ
BEREFHEEKRE) ERR
E R BBOR R R A
HITES - TERLERERE
TRERNBAIRELED A
B EBUL A 3 E AR R A
HERMFA A RS L ED A
HEAE - Bt - D EBRAEH
BRB A RS EED BRI
A HERA - HEBERRK
EHN - ERIELLERRE
MEBEE R B o

AEBERREDELAT

HEREBTIEH LBEMN
TRAEMHUER AR E
B RZARREBRIBELER
OB AR B R P
EREVBITEE MOH B 5%

DRFEEB T ER LET
RELREEMHBRIADN
ERAREEE  ZRAEE
A1 55 00 R A1 R B8 R 2R T
DIECE

BER T ELERRERM
EBENOREERD AR
BH - ARETERERKSE
TMERELERDEEED
R BRI EERE -
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(BRAFFRETIAIN - BB HR/ARBT)
XXXVI.SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) St REER (])

2. The financial information of report segments 2. BESBHHHRER

For the six months ended June 30, 2025

2025%1-68
The occluder- Cardiac valve-
segment segment Total
HEBHD LRERAH ait
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
ltem b (REE) (RIEEH) (REEH)
Main operating income TEEBUA 289,500,937.08 40,125,415.38 329,626,352.46
Main operating cost TEEBHA 31,157,705.63 14,090,100.88 45,247,815.51
Gross profit £l 258,343,231.45 26,035,305.50 284,378,536.95
Research and development expenses HEER 15,881,890.92 9,472,946.62 25,354,837.54
Segment profi ABHE 242,461,340.53 16,562,358.88 259,023,699.41
Undistributed item APRER
Other operating income EVES1ON 78,986.32
Other operating cost EtEBAA 110,325.84
Taxes and surcharges HaRHm 4,311,640.12
Selling expense HEER 43,250,901.44
Administrative expense ERER 14,605,208.57
Financial expense HRER -0,872,320.20
Other income At 3,895,091.04
Investment income RENS 2,606,905.31
Loss on impairment of credit ERRER -2,425,491.73
Operating profit Eail 210,773,434.58
Non-operating income SR
Non-operating expense EELIS 5,609.34

Total proft HEeE 210,767,825.24
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